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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: My name is

          3  Larry Seabrook, and I'm the Chairperson of the New

          4  York City Council Committee on Civil Rights.

          5                 Today we will be continuing our

          6  series of joint Civil Rights and Public Safety

          7  hearings on the New York City Police Department. We

          8  are glad to welcome Chairperson Kendall Stewart and

          9  the Committee on Immigration, who is joining us for

         10  today's dialogue. Sean Bell's tragic, senseless

         11  death reminds us all that our Police Department, in

         12  all its success in bringing down crime rates and for

         13  all of the excellent work that they do faces a real

         14  crisis of faith, in terms of its relations to

         15  diverse communities, particularly communities of

         16  color.

         17                 This crisis is not unfounded. Amadou

         18  Diallo, Osmund Zongo, Patrick Dorismond and Timothy

         19  Stansbury, among too many others, are testaments to

         20  the NYPD's chronic problems in relations to

         21  protecting the communities and individuals who need

         22  the most. We've looked at the NYPD's training and

         23  deployment procedures, and we've looked at

         24  monitoring systems that attempt to keep a watch over

         25  NYPD operations. Today we are going to ask how we
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          2  can make things better. Today we're going to look at

          3  community policing. Something that time and time

          4  again I've heard from my constituents and

          5  constituents around this City is desperately needed,

          6  community policing.

          7                 Community policing can mean a lot of

          8  different things, in terms of strategies and

          9  programs. From my perspective, I'm looking forward

         10  to hearing about community policing as a civil

         11  rights issue. Every American has the right to life,

         12  liberty and the pursuit of happiness. To me liberty

         13  means, among other things, the ability to live one's

         14  life free from fear of unjustified intrusion or

         15  harm.

         16                 People have a right to live in their

         17  homes, and to be able to leave their homes and go

         18  about their lawful business without being afraid of

         19  criminal privation of their liberty, whether that

         20  liberty is manifested as personal belongings or

         21  feelings of personal security. But it is important

         22  to remember that crime can be perpetrated by anyone

         23  in the context of this discussion who

         24  inappropriately takes away liberty. So, the thief

         25  who steals a wallet at gunpoint, or the gang that
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          2  terrorizes a community, these are crimes.

          3                 But the police officer, who without

          4  reason, stops a blameless teenager on the street,

          5  that police officer takes away liberty too. This

          6  kind of inter-reaction is a violation of civil

          7  liberties. This kind of inter-reaction violates

          8  civil rights immediately in terms of the act itself

          9  and indirectly in terms of the atmosphere of

         10  distrust and fear that inter-reaction creates and

         11  spreads around. This inter-reaction happens every

         12  single day in this City without justification.

         13                 I'd like to reiterate that I think

         14  our New York City Police Department is the finest

         15  Police Department in this country, serving the

         16  greatest City in the world, and I understand that

         17  with this service would inevitably come some of the

         18  greatest challenges imaginable in relation to how

         19  police most effectively.

         20                 In the future we are going to talk

         21  about the process of stops themselves, but today we

         22  are going to talk about policing effectively,

         23  something inclusive of the inter-reaction I

         24  described, as well as other kinds of engagement.

         25                 A lot of people, me included, think
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          2  of a community policing strategy with police focused

          3  on neighborhoods familiar with and familiar to

          4  residents is an effective way to guarantee civil

          5  rights and civil liberties. If the cop on the street

          6  knew that teenager and knew that he always hangs out

          7  on the corner at 9:00 p.m. because he is waiting for

          8  a ride home, we clear up confusion that can

          9  otherwise have real, very negative consequences. We

         10  build relationships that at the same time can

         11  strengthen the fight against real crime and protect

         12  civil rights. It's a conversation that's very much

         13  worth having, and I'd like to thank the New York

         14  City Police Department and the other advocates who

         15  are here today for joining us.

         16                 And now I will turn it over to the

         17  Chair of Public Safety, who is Councilman Peter

         18  Vallone.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, Chair

         20  Seabrook. Let me say it's my honor to work again

         21  with you. This is at least our third. We've done

         22  undercover training, we've done external and

         23  internal monitoring, we've got stop and frisk coming

         24  up in the fall, I think, and it's a pleasure to

         25  actually work with Kendall this time, and probably
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          2  for my first time. Welcome aboard.

          3                 Today, as Chair Seabrook said, we'll

          4  be looking at the NYPD's policies and practices

          5  regarding community policing. I'd like to applaud

          6  the Speaker and her staff for all her ongoing

          7  attention and to police and community relations

          8  issues.

          9                 At today's hearing we'll explore the

         10  current state of community policing in New York

         11  City. It's a term of art used to describe any number

         12  of different police policies, practices and

         13  strategies, and elicits from people different

         14  emotions and associations.

         15                 I think I heard Ray Kelly on the

         16  radio on this weekend, talking about how community

         17  policing involved input from the community and

         18  communication with the community, and I want to echo

         19  Chair Seabrook's thoughts, I agree completely that

         20  we've got the best Police Department I believe in

         21  the entire world, but one of the areas we have heard

         22  during our hearing processes here is that

         23  communication can be improved.

         24                 Many of these stop and frisks, while,

         25  and we can argue about this ad nauseam, but while
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          2  vast majority being completely legitimate, are not

          3  done with the communication that should be there.

          4  And if people knew the reason for which they were

          5  being stopped, they would be much more amenable to

          6  actually being stopped and cooperating. So, this is

          7  one area where we discovered the communication is

          8  much better. So, today we're going to focus on

          9  improving that relationship between police and the

         10  communities. We'd like to know about how officers

         11  get assigned to routine patrols? What is a

         12  designation of Community Affairs Officer with each

         13  precinct? What does that involve? The police

         14  interaction with different immigrant communities,

         15  and that's why we're pleased to have Kendall here

         16  with us today. There have been various reports done

         17  on this in the past by the City Council and by other

         18  groups that we'll be looking at, and we'll be

         19  looking forward to hearing from the NYPD and various

         20  civil rights organizations, members of the clergy,

         21  different expert opinions from different areas on

         22  this, and that will be taking up the rest of the day

         23  after the Police Department.

         24                 So, again, I'm pleased that we're

         25  here today to continue this process and to be
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          2  working with these esteemed co-chairs. And I'd like

          3  to turn it over to Kendall Stewart, Chair of our

          4  Immigration Committee.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Good morning. My

          6  name is Kendall Stewart. I am the Chair of the

          7  Immigration Committee. I would like to thank my

          8  co-chairs, Peter Vallone of the Public Safety

          9  Committee, and Larry Seabrook of the Civil Rights

         10  Committee, for conducting this important hearing on

         11  Community Policing.

         12                 I would like to applaud the Speaker

         13  as well for efforts to improve Police Community

         14  Relations. Though recent decades witness a growing

         15  commitment among local police agencies and

         16  communities throughout the United States to

         17  community-oriented policing, the rising number of

         18  immigrants living throughout the nation and the

         19  event of September 11th, 2001, have changed the

         20  landscape of community policing.

         21                 The 2000 Census revealed a

         22  significant increase in the number and diversity of

         23  immigrants in New York City. More than one-third of

         24  the population is foreign borne, hailing from

         25  approximately 200 countries around the world, and
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          2  the number of immigrant New Yorkers continues to

          3  grow.

          4                 For the NYPD, building trust in

          5  communities where a significant number of immigrants

          6  live is a challenge. As many of these people feared,

          7  the police do not speak English and are unfamiliar

          8  with the local justice system. When the local law

          9  enforcement took on a new role in national

         10  counter-terrorism efforts in the wake of September

         11  11the, 2001, this further complicated the task of

         12  promoting police immigrant community relations. The

         13  primary barrier that the NYPD and other Police

         14  Departments have faced in building relationships

         15  with immigrant communities:

         16                 1) fear that contact with police

         17  could lead to deportation.

         18                 2) imported distrust of police and

         19  judicial system carried over from countries of

         20  origin.

         21                 3) language and communication

         22  barriers; and also cultural misunderstandings.

         23                 In order to do their jobs effectively

         24  and safely, soon civilian law enforcement personnel

         25  must be able to communicate with the people they
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          2  serve, including the increasing number of immigrant

          3  communities that do not speak English well. In New

          4  York City, a quarter of all adults, or more than 1.2

          5  million people, have inadequate English skills,

          6  which is an issue that the Immigration Committee

          7  explored at a hearing this past May.

          8                 Many of New York City limited English

          9  proficiency residents interact with the Criminal

         10  Justice System in a variety of ways - as victims,

         11  witnesses, defendants and in other roles.

         12                 In 2004, over 240,000 people with

         13  limited English proficiency called the Emergency

         14  9-1-1 number. Tens of thousands of New Yorkers with

         15  limited English proficiency are also arrested each

         16  year and interact with multiple City agencies, as

         17  they move through the justice system, such as the

         18  NYPD, the Department of Probation, and in cases of

         19  detention, the Department of Correction.

         20                 As first responders for public

         21  safety, law enforcement personnel face a special

         22  burden. Police officers cannot perform their duties

         23  as well when they cannot communicate with the people

         24  they serve, when language barriers prevent

         25  individuals from reporting a crime or describing a
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          2  suspect. For example, it becomes that much harder

          3  for police to gather evidence or provide protection.

          4                 Language barriers can even threaten

          5  the safety of others. Being unable to communicate

          6  with an armed suspect can dangerously exacerbate a

          7  life or death situation. Whether during a routine

          8  car stop or a major homicide investigation, law

          9  enforcement officers must be able to communicate

         10  effectively to do their jobs. The obstacles

         11  associated with language barriers are often

         12  complicated by the fact that many immigrants with

         13  limited English proficiency fear the police and go

         14  to the great lengths to avoid contact with them.

         15                 Overcoming these challenges is

         16  essential to ensuring public safety.

         17                 Again, I would like to thank my

         18  co-chairs for holding this very important hearing,

         19  and I look forward to today's testimony on critical

         20  topics.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: We would like

         22  to introduce the members of the various Committees

         23  who are here. We have Jimmy Oddo, Councilman from

         24  Staten Island. We also have Dan Garodnick,

         25  Councilman from Manhattan. We have Melinda Katz,
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          2  Council Member from Queens; and Erik Dilan, Council

          3  Member from Brooklyn. And just for the record in

          4  stating here, the Speaker had created a number of

          5  Speakouts, and I want to thank the Police Department

          6  and certainly Chief Ziegler, who has we traveled

          7  around this City and went to every borough with the

          8  Speakouts, and one of the real issues that we

          9  constantly heard was about community policing, and

         10  that he has been there at every one of those

         11  hearings, and I certainly wanted to thank you, and

         12  thank Commissioner Kelly, for the participation and

         13  the endurance of listening at all of the hearings

         14  and the testimony and I certainly want to thank you.

         15                 So, without any further ado, we're

         16  going to have Douglas Zeigler, Chief of Community

         17  Affairs.

         18                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Mr. Chairman, Council

         19  Members, with me today I brought a few of my staff

         20  members. I have Chief Bonano (phonetic), who is my

         21  Executive Staff Officer, I have Inspector Borrer

         22  (phonetic), who is the CO of the 75th Precinct,

         23  Deputy Inspector Cassidy, who is on my staff, Deputy

         24  Inspector Reek (phonetic), who is from the Housing

         25  Bureau, and Captain Charlene Brown, who is one of my

                                                            15

          1  CIVIL RIGHTS, IMMIGRATION AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  staff members.

          3                 Good morning. I'm Chief Douglas

          4  Zeigler, Chief of the Community Affairs Bureau.

          5  Thank you for the opportunity to be here today to

          6  discuss how New York City Police Department works

          7  with the communities it serves.

          8                 Community policing is built in the

          9  very structure of the NYPD. Unlike many police

         10  agencies that conduct all police operations from one

         11  central base, we deliver police services primarily

         12  through the 76 precincts and nine Housing Police

         13  service areas situated in and closely aligned with

         14  59 community boards throughout the City. This

         15  arrangement allows for close and constant contact

         16  between local officers and residents, businesses,

         17  clergy and community leaders in their geographical

         18  area, performing working relationships and

         19  addressing local problems together.

         20                 And this precinct-based arrangement

         21  is not limited to just patrol officers. Precinct

         22  detective squads perform follow-up investigations

         23  for crimes that occur within the precinct. These

         24  detectives possess the same familiarity with local

         25  community as the patrol officers do. In fact, many
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          2  of the precinct detectives have previously been

          3  patrol officers in the same precinct.

          4                 Likewise, our narcotics investigators

          5  are deployed in precinct narcotic modules. They work

          6  closely with the local precinct commander to address

          7  narcotic problems within the precinct boundaries.

          8  They also often attend precinct and police service

          9  area community council meetings to hear firsthand

         10  from residents about serious narcotics problems.

         11                 And like their precinct detectives,

         12  many of the narcotics investigators had once

         13  patrolled the very same streets as the uniformed

         14  patrol officers.

         15                 Our local precincts serve on average

         16  a little over 100,000 residents each, so the City's

         17  neighborhoods truly have neighborhood precincts

         18  invested in the quality of life of a particular

         19  geographical area in the people who live and work

         20  there.

         21                 Citywide and specialized commands are

         22  also crucial to the mission of the Department, and

         23  they, too, build relationships and work with New

         24  Yorkers.

         25                 As you know, our Housing police
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          2  officers work out of nine police service areas and

          3  three satellites, primarily perform patrol on foot

          4  with some bicycle, scooter and vehicle patrols.

          5                 Perhaps less visibly our Transit

          6  police officers work out of districts that encompass

          7  many precincts, so you may not think of them as

          8  serving a particular community, but they serve the 7

          9  million commuters who use the Transit system daily.

         10  So, whether you take the Number 6 Train or the D

         11  Train, the R Train or the J Train, the same police

         12  officers patrol those trains day-after-day and are

         13  intimately familiar with the crime and quality of

         14  life conditions on each line.

         15                 We recognize that it is essential for

         16  police agencies to reach out to the communities in

         17  both formal and informal ways. This is part of the

         18  mission of all of our local operational commanders

         19  and their staffs. In times of great stress, for

         20  example, after the shooting of Sean Bell, public

         21  debate centers on the way the NYPD polices the City,

         22  and whether we treat all communities fairly and

         23  equally. It is at those times that we find that the

         24  strong relationships which local commanders and

         25  officers have developed with the people they serve,
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          2  enable the Department to continue to do its work.

          3                 Part of my job is to listen to that

          4  dialogue and to help both the Department as a whole,

          5  and local commanders in particular, as they strive

          6  to improve the performance of their officers and

          7  foster better relationships with the community.

          8                 We have a structure in place in that

          9  mission - the Community Affairs Bureau. The Bureau

         10  was reorganized last year under my command to

         11  emphasize the importance of community relations. It

         12  was also greatly expanded to include within it the

         13  Department of School Safety Division, increasing

         14  opportunities and resources directly available for

         15  reaching out to young people in New York City.

         16                 I would like to describe for you some

         17  of the efforts of the Community Affairs Bureau to

         18  develop strong relationships with the people we all

         19  serve.

         20                 First, we support and coordinate the

         21  efforts of the community affairs officers assigned

         22  to all of the City's patrol boroughs, precincts,

         23  police service areas and transit districts. They are

         24  visible and vital presences in our neighborhoods,

         25  sharing information addressing local problems and
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          2  concerns and providing a crucial link to the Police

          3  Department in times of calm, as well as during

          4  emergencies.

          5                 Similarly, members of my staff are

          6  assigned as borough liaisons in each of the City's

          7  patrol boroughs, to keep us informed about local

          8  issues and to foster police community partnerships.

          9                 We run several programs specifically

         10  aimed at involving volunteers from the community in

         11  the fight against crime and quality of life

         12  offenses.

         13                 Our Block Watcher Program trains

         14  community members on how to accurately report crime.

         15  Our civilian observation patrol program trains and

         16  supports local patrols. Our civilian observer

         17  ride-along programs give community members a

         18  realistic view of how a police officer spends his or

         19  her tour of duty.

         20                 Our NYPD CARES program is an email

         21  and fax notification system designed to keep

         22  individuals and organizations informed of important

         23  information and upcoming events regarding public

         24  safety, quality of life and police community

         25  relations, as well as to request the public's
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          2  assistance with specific police-related matters.

          3                 Perhaps most important, we coordinate

          4  and support the City's Precinct Community Councils,

          5  which gives local residents and businesses a monthly

          6  forum for direct communication with the precinct

          7  leadership and serve as an invaluable mechanism for

          8  addressing local problems.

          9                 The goal of fostering community

         10  partnerships is also accomplished by our work with

         11  local clergy, through the Clergy Liaison Program,

         12  which includes formal meetings, training sessions,

         13  one-on-one contact with over 300 of the City's

         14  religious leaders, representing all faiths. Our

         15  Special Projects Unit organizes annual special

         16  events relating to religious observance. For

         17  example, the annual Pre-Ramadan Conference and the

         18  Pre-Passover Conference, as well as other types of

         19  special programs, including National Night Out,

         20  Harmony Day Picnics, Commanding Officer for a Day,

         21  Police Officer for a Day, and Toys for Tots.

         22                 Because the population of New York

         23  City is constantly changing, the Community Affairs

         24  Bureau has established a New Immigrant Outreach

         25  Unit, whose members serve as a link between the
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          2  Police Department and new immigrant communities,

          3  organizing informational forums which may include

          4  speakers from other agencies to address that

          5  particular community's specific needs.

          6                 We would like to note particularly

          7  that within the last year we have brought on board

          8  two civilian community coordinators in our New

          9  Immigrant Outreach Unit. In fact, they are here

         10  today. There is Sidiki Wy (phonetic), who represents

         11  the African community, and Ahearn Yahern (phonetic),

         12  who represents the Muslim community.

         13                 The unit also works with special

         14  needs or concerns such as senior citizens, the

         15  liaison, a lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender

         16  community, persons with disabilities, and others not

         17  traditionally engaged with the Police Department.

         18                 The Community Affairs Bureau offers

         19  several different informative presentations through

         20  its Training Unit, speaking with groups on topics as

         21  diverse as the Department's Anti-Graffiti

         22  Initiative, gang awareness, and terrorism awareness.

         23  One especially helpful presentation is"Your Rights

         24  and Responsibility," as part of our youth dialogue,

         25  and which our officers explain what to expect when
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          2  interacting with the police. We have prepared a

          3  pamphlet which accompanies that presentation, and

          4  we'll be happy to share it with you.

          5                 Our outreach efforts to young people

          6  are all coordinated by the Bureau's Youth Services

          7  Sections, whose goals are to promote child safety,

          8  reduce youth violence, prevent drug use and gang

          9  involvement, and improve relationships between

         10  police and young people.

         11                 Our Youth Programs include the Police

         12  Athletic League, which is the largest independent

         13  youth organization in New York City, the law

         14  enforcement explorers with over 4,000 members in

         15  every precinct and police service area in the City,

         16  the Summer Youth Police Academy, a five-week program

         17  involving interactive role play, drills, leadership,

         18  team playing, building exercises, a New York City

         19  oriented version of the GREAT Program, Gang

         20  Resistance Education And Training, the Police Youth

         21  dialogues which familiarize young people through

         22  roleplay what they experience in being a police

         23  officer, and internship programs in the Police

         24  Department for high school and college students.

         25                 Finally, we encourage the public to
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          2  take advantage of a program that the Department

          3  offers, the Civilian Police Academy, which is based

          4  on the same core lessons taught to our recruits. The

          5  Academy normally conducts two 14-week sessions per

          6  year, consisting of one three-hour session per week.

          7  Veteran Police Academy instructors use lecture,

          8  video presentations and role plays to provide

          9  insight into police work, and participants are

         10  selected by the commanding officers of every

         11  precinct, transit district and housing police

         12  service area.

         13                 In closing, I would like to thank the

         14  Council for sponsoring a series of Town Hall

         15  meetings throughout the City to discuss community

         16  police relations.

         17                 The meetings provided us with

         18  valuable feedback on the issues of New Yorkers -- on

         19  the issues that New Yorkers care about, and gave us

         20  additional opportunity to share our thoughts about

         21  what the Police Department, as well as community

         22  members, can do to improve both the reality and the

         23  perception of policing in this great and complex

         24  City.

         25                 I appreciate the opportunity to speak

                                                            24

          1  CIVIL RIGHTS, IMMIGRATION AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  with you about the Police Department's efforts to

          3  build strong partnerships with all of the

          4  communities of New York City, and I welcome your

          5  questions.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: Thank you very

          7  much, Chief Zeigler. We're going to have questions,

          8  but we've been joined by Councilman Joe Addabbo from

          9  Queens, Councilwoman Helen Foster from the Bronx,

         10  and Councilman Charles Barron from Brooklyn.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Chief, again, my

         12  name is Councilman Stewart. I'm going to start off

         13  with a few simple questions and I know my colleagues

         14  are going to be a little stronger with their

         15  questions, but we have quite a number of questions

         16  we want to resolve.

         17                 I'm going to be focusing more

         18  specifically on immigration and language access-type

         19  questions. So, I hope the staff here are prepared to

         20  answer some of these simple questions.

         21                 How does the Department address its

         22  language access issues? And what language assistance

         23  service does the Department provide to your offices?

         24                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Well, one of the

         25  things that we have in every police service area, in
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          2  every precinct and every transit district throughout

          3  the City is we have what we call "The Language

          4  Line," and basically what that is, is a telephone

          5  that every precinct has that we can use to translate

          6  for any languages that may, that we may come across.

          7                 In addition to that, all the patrol

          8  supervisors out on patrol have cell phones which

          9  connect directly to the language line. So, at any

         10  given time that we need to access a particular

         11  language, we have The Language Line, which is the

         12  line which the Department pays for that is 24/7,

         13  seven days a week, where we can access any language

         14  that we come across. So, that's how we handle that.

         15                 In addition to that, as you may have

         16  known, some of the last classes that we've had that

         17  graduate from the Academy over the last few couple

         18  of years have been the most diverse in terms of

         19  people coming from foreign countries outside of the

         20  United States. So, we have a lot of officers

         21  themselves who speak a lot of different languages.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: So, what you're

         23  saying, do you really have a protocol as to

         24  language, how you access that or how you use that?

         25  Do you have some sort of a protocol? Because you're
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          2  somewhat generalizing there, and in my community it

          3  might be Creole, but in another community it might

          4  be Arabic, or some different language. I want to

          5  know what is the protocol? The New York City is

          6  diverse.

          7                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: We are quite aware of

          8  the diversity of New York City and the number of

          9  languages that are out there, and as a result, The

         10  Language Line gives us access to a whole host of

         11  languages, and in fact, I think over 100 languages

         12  that they give us access to. And the protocol that

         13  we utilize is that when a police officer responds to

         14  a job, and they determine that they cannot speak the

         15  language of that particular person, what they do is

         16  they call for the patrol supervisor who has that

         17  cell phone on him at all times, and the cell phone

         18  we can access at that given moment The Language

         19  Line, which is already programmed in the cell phone,

         20  and they can access it at any given time and we can

         21  then be able to speak to that particular person.

         22                 In addition to that, the Operations

         23  Unit that we have has a list of names of all police

         24  officers that speak over 300 and something

         25  languages, so we have a lot of ways we can translate
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          2  and speak to people of diverse communities.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Do you keep

          4  stats on that? Do you keep stats when an officer has

          5  difficulty in terms of language?

          6                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: No, we don't keep

          7  stats on a number of times an officer responds to a

          8  job and he may not be able to immediately converse

          9  with the person who is calling the police. We don't

         10  keep stats on that, no.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: All right.

         12                 What led to the creation of the New

         13  Immigrant Outreach Unit?

         14                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Well, it's as you

         15  stated earlier, sir. New York City is a changing

         16  community and it's prudent upon the Police

         17  Department to be able to reach out to all the

         18  communities. And, so, that's why Commissioner Kelly

         19  elected to create the New Immigrant Unit so that we

         20  can have a unit that, as we know from dealing with

         21  some prior communities, immigrant communities, that

         22  there's a reluctance on the part of them to reach

         23  out to the police, so we feel it's incumbent upon us

         24  to reach out to them. So, that was one of the basis

         25  why we decided to create a New Immigrant Unit. And
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          2  what we did is we staffed that unit with a lot of

          3  officers who, for instance, were born outside of the

          4  United States - we have them from Yenin, we have

          5  them from Pakistan, we have them from Haiti, we have

          6  them from Jamaica - so what we did is we tried to

          7  get some of the officers to reflect some of the

          8  communities to be in that unit.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Are there any

         10  plans to expand this unit? If so, how? And is there

         11  any time line for these developments?

         12                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: We always look, when a

         13  new class graduates, we always look to see who is in

         14  that class, what kind of skills they have, what kind

         15  of language skills they have, what kind of cultural

         16  skills that they may have that may be of assistance

         17  to us. And if we find someone that's very unique, we

         18  try to give them a little time out, out on patrol,

         19  but eventually we try to certainly expand it.

         20                 So, there is no set number on how

         21  many should be in a unit, we just know we've been

         22  very involved with the unit in terms of the officers

         23  getting involved out there.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Could you tell

         25  me if there are any major initiatives in this unit?
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          2  And what issues does the unit primarily focus on, if

          3  there is?

          4                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Well, I can talk of a

          5  number of initiatives that we've had.

          6                 First of all, what we've done is

          7  we've had forums throughout the City with respect to

          8  -- for instance, up in East Harlem, we've had

          9  forums for the Mexican community up there, because

         10  we understand they were being subject to, what we

         11  heard, certain crimes, but they weren't coming

         12  forward with us.

         13                 So, what we did is we started forums.

         14  We got together with some of the local churches up

         15  there and we created forums that night where we got

         16  to know them. We brought in a number of speakers

         17  from a lot of different agencies to talk about fire

         18  safety, to talk about immigrant issues and stuff

         19  like that. That's one of the things that we do. And

         20  we've done that in all the five boroughs.

         21                 In addition to that, we've been out

         22  in Staten Island with the Liberian because we

         23  understand there is a large, growing Liberian

         24  community out there and that there's been some

         25  issues at the schools with respect to some of the
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          2  Liberian boys and some of the other boys that are in

          3  the school. So, we've been in there dealing with

          4  those issues there. Up in Harlem, we've been dealing

          5  with the African vendors with respect to the police

          6  and the police enforcement with respect to those

          7  vendors, in terms of what they need to have, the

          8  proper licenses, and why we take some of their goods

          9  away in certain areas, and we kind of gave them a

         10  long forum on where they should be at, where they

         11  can vendor at and where they can't vendor at.

         12                 So, certainly what we're doing is

         13  we're trying to reach out to all the different

         14  communities that are immigrant and trying to deal

         15  with their particular issues that may concern the

         16  police.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: All right. Some

         18  time ago the Mayor signed the Executive Order 41; do

         19  you know exactly what that is?

         20                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: I believe most of our

         21  police officers know what that is.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Well, we do have

         23  at least two classes every year; is there two

         24  classes we have every year?

         25                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Yes, sir.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Has anyone

          3  really enlightened them, let them know about

          4  Executive Order 41?

          5                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Yes, part of their

          6  training that they get in the Academy, toward the

          7  end of their time in the Academy they go through a

          8  whole series of cultural sensitivity training. But

          9  one of the things that they definitely emphasize is

         10  the Executive Order 41. So, all the officers get

         11  that particular training.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Now, how does

         13  the NYPD address significant barriers to building

         14  relationships with immigrant communities, such as

         15  they fear that contact with police could lead to

         16  deportation, imported distrust of police in judicial

         17  system carried over from countries of origin? In

         18  other words, they come here with that fear. How does

         19  the NYPD address significant barriers like these?

         20                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Well, it's like I

         21  stated earlier, we realize they come with a lot of

         22  different fears in the different diverse

         23  communities, particularly immigrant communities. We

         24  find that how we address it is by having positive

         25  contacts with them on a regular basis, and that's
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          2  what we're doing. And in fact, that's why we hired,

          3  for instance, someone from the Muslim community, and

          4  someone from the African community, because we feel

          5  that by having positive contacts, finding out what

          6  their issues are, and also seeing if we can address

          7  them. And when we had these forums, one of the

          8  things we tell the community is that we're not here

          9  to -- we're not concerned about your immigrant

         10  status. That doesn't concern us. What we're

         11  concerned about is issues in this community that

         12  concerns the Police Department and that we can

         13  address.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: I do a quarterly

         15  forum with the police, and we talk about issues like

         16  how one responds to the police and we talk about

         17  current events, things like that. You mentioned that

         18  you have a bill, you have something that you

         19  prepared?

         20                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Rights and

         21  Responsibilities.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Did you put a

         23  copy of that -- do you have that, which you can

         24  share with us?

         25                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Yes, we have it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: All right, I

          3  would like to have one of those, because I don't

          4  think every department, you need to do that with

          5  every department.

          6                 I will defer some of my questions

          7  now, so that some of my colleagues can follow-up

          8  with some other questions.

          9                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: Thank you very

         11  much, Councilman Stewart.

         12                 Chief, one of the constant things

         13  that we heard as we moved around this City, and I

         14  constantly hear, is the level of disrespect, and as

         15  all of those hearings that we went to, people talked

         16  about them being disrespected by the Police and the

         17  Police has what it calls "Courtesy, Professionalism

         18  and Respect" and throughout those hearings there was

         19  a constant concern that people had about this lack

         20  of respect, the profanity, and just recently the

         21  young men who were stopped and arrested, and their

         22  response was that the police in the action in which

         23  the language in which they started out with they

         24  indicated.

         25                 And then I saw something, and I want
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          2  to talk a little bit about CPR, because I think it's

          3  very important and I think that that's a real issue

          4  within the communities, because I saw something and

          5  I wonder, how is a person, when we talk about CPR,

          6  what is the response when the Police Commissioner

          7  and Chiefs see this, a young man runs on Yankee

          8  Stadium grounds, he's in violation. He's

          9  apprehended. He's handcuffed, and a police officer

         10  has his foot on his head. And the picture is taken

         11  at the Daily News near the front page, and the

         12  police officer had his foot on his head. He's

         13  already handcuffed, apprehended. Violation. Not a

         14  serious crime for running on the field, although it

         15  could lead to something, but it's an indicator that

         16  people see that. And so they hear the abuse, they

         17  see the abuse, and we had grandparents coming at

         18  those hearings that we had and was talking about

         19  that.

         20                 How are people trained to deal with

         21  CPR. Give us a run down of a police officer, and how

         22  is he taught this level of"Courtesy and Respect?"

         23  And what happens when they violate that? What

         24  happens on the precinct level? Is there a statistic

         25  that is actually accumulated when a complaint is
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          2  that we will know how, and how it is addressed, and

          3  what happens with that?

          4                 I think if you can kind of walk us

          5  through this type of training that allows a person

          6  to develop this, it's coming out that most officers

          7  at one point were not from these areas, and they are

          8  now placed in these areas; what type of training is

          9  actually done with this CPR?

         10                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Well, all officers in

         11  the Academy are given CRP training, and in terms of

         12  how they deal with multi-cultural communities. And

         13  they are also given sensitivity training. But as you

         14  know, Councilman, I was with you when we went around

         15  the City, and I heard some of the same concerns that

         16  you heard.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: Right.

         18                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: And I transferred

         19  those concerns top the Police Commissioner, and as a

         20  result of that, we're trying to come up with

         21  something different when this class graduates at the

         22  end of this year, at the end of this month.

         23                 One of the things that we're doing is

         24  we're changing the training somewhat with respect to

         25  what they get and how they do it. What we're going
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          2  to try to do differently this time around, it's

          3  probably never been done before in the history of

          4  the NYPD, is that we're going to have, I guess you

          5  would call it a immersion into the community. We're

          6  going to take these officers that are graduating at

          7  the end of June, and we're going to bring them out

          8  into your community, and when I say we, I'm talking

          9  about members of my staff, members of the Community

         10  Affairs Bureau, members of the Community Affairs

         11  Offices throughout the Precinct, and we're going to

         12  bring them out to you and we're going to show them

         13  what they should be doing in your community, how

         14  they should be treating community members, and also

         15  doing whatever we can to get them to try to get to

         16  learn the mechanism on how to get to know your

         17  community. Because that's what we heard a lot, we

         18  kept hearing the officers, and we felt that the

         19  disrespect -- because sometimes the disrespect that

         20  we heard was from people saying they felt

         21  disrespected because the officers didn't speak to

         22  them. And so what we want to do, is we want to try

         23  to get officers out there to start speaking to

         24  people.

         25                 We want to start getting officers out
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          2  there to start getting to know the community, and

          3  want the community to get to know them. So, we're

          4  trying to make strides in that area.

          5                 But to answer your question with

          6  respect to what's done, I would think that if there

          7  is a picture of someone, an officer with a foot on

          8  someone's head, that there would be something done

          9  about that. I haven't seen the picture, but I would

         10  imagine --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: I'll get it for

         12  you.

         13                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: But I would imagine if

         14  someone has a foot on someone's head, that that will

         15  be something that his commanding officer will take

         16  some action against.

         17                 I don't see how we could justify

         18  that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: So, now, how

         20  long is this training that an officer receives as it

         21  relates to CPR in terms of an officer coming in?

         22  What's the length of training and preparation and

         23  the type of courses that they would have?

         24                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Well, currently what I

         25  think they get in the Academy is, what, a couple of
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          2  weeks, I think?

          3                 Well, during the six months, I'm

          4  being told by my staff that about a third of that

          5  training is dealing with cultural sensitivity,

          6  social science courses, how to police in a

          7  multi-cultural community, stuff like that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: So, are there

          9  CPR training manuals that exist that you have that's

         10  available so that people can actually see that this

         11  is a course in which a person actually takes going

         12  through this?

         13                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: I imagine there is

         14  manuals, and I will get that to you later.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: Certainly.

         16                 And then the other question, as it

         17  relates to the languages that Councilman Stewart was

         18  talking about, when you're in the community, are

         19  there assignments on the basis of the diversity that

         20  we have in precincts, where there is an emergence of

         21  the new Spanish-speaking population? Are officers

         22  assigned on the basis of dealing with that issue?

         23  Because in other areas now that changes have taken

         24  place, the demographic changes, where people are now

         25  speaking Spanish where it wasn't, but the officers
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          2  haven't changed that much; how is that assignment?

          3                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Yes, I think that if

          4  you look at some of the assignments as to how we

          5  assign some of our officers, we do assign officers

          6  who, for instance, speak Spanish a lot, we will send

          7  up to East Harlem. Some of our Asian officers have

          8  been here in the fifth precinct. Some of our Haitian

          9  officers have been sent out to 70 Precinct, so we

         10  try to assign them on that basis the best that we

         11  can. It's not something that we do all the time in

         12  every case. As you may know, we've gotten into

         13  trouble by doing that once before and we had a

         14  lawsuit, and so we have to be careful of how we

         15  assign officers, in terms of when we do that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: And now, the

         17  instructions on the CPR and diversity training, what

         18  is the ethnic breakdown of those in the Academy who

         19  are preparing these officers in this diversity;

         20  what's the instructional --

         21                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: You mean the

         22  instructors?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: Right.

         24                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: I can get that for

         25  you. I do know that I have seen the instructors.
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          2  There is quite a bit of them. I've seen them and

          3  they seem to be a number of different ethnic groups.

          4  But certainly we can get that for you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: Yes, because we

          6  would like to take a look and then take a look at

          7  what is the curriculum that's actually provided in

          8  the level of diversity and that's there. I'm glad

          9  that you're talking about introducing these officers

         10  to the community as it relates to that, because I

         11  think that the belief is they're in a foreign turf

         12  and that they're only there at a certain number of

         13  hours, and they leave, and not being a part of, as

         14  you heard, the conversation, that many people felt

         15  that there was a need to have officers as a part of

         16  the community which they're actually serving, and

         17  that there is a link, and that they're there, not

         18  just as a occupying force. That was an issue and

         19  concern that people constantly had.

         20                 What is, for the use of profanity and

         21  abusive language by an officer to a person who he

         22  has not arrested, but has used that language; what

         23  would be, if someone reported, what would be the

         24  punishment for an officer that does that?

         25                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: If it can be proven,
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          2  usually if an officer uses inappropriate language, I

          3  mean I'm talking about an officer that for the first

          4  time they would get a command discipline, and that

          5  could be anywhere from a warning to taking a few

          6  days off their time leave.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: Okay, then one

          8  other question and then I'll come back. One of the

          9  issues and concerns that we constantly see within

         10  the community is that the Narcotics Unit that you

         11  talked about in those cases,  they're not basically

         12  assigned to the precinct but they come into the

         13  precinct sometimes without the knowledge of the

         14  precinct commander. And we've had a number of

         15  incidents in my community where the police came in,

         16  wrong door warrants, 90-year-old, 80-year-old

         17  handcuffed, wrong apartment that they hit. We've had

         18  about four of them. Recently we had one where there

         19  was a 92-year-old in the apartment, they knocked the

         20  door down and then handcuffed the individuals. They

         21  never notified the precinct and they had, you know,

         22  just came in. How are we going to resolve, and what

         23  takes place when those situations happen? I mean,

         24  the police called later and made an apology. But the

         25  point is that something could have happened in there
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          2  that could have created a tremendous problem?

          3                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Well, Councilman, as

          4  you may know, I came into this assignment, I was the

          5  Chief of Organized Crime and narcotics was under me

          6  at that time, and one of the things they do, they do

          7  an awful lot of warrants throughout the City and

          8  most of them go unnoticed, uneventful and pretty

          9  productive.

         10                 Every now and then there are

         11  mistakes, and in some of the cases that you may have

         12  mentioned, there were mistakes. And usually the

         13  mistakes might have been become someone didn't do

         14  the proper follow-up checks. And we have in place,

         15  in terms of ensuring that you hit the right door

         16  that you know who is behind that door before you go

         17  there. And so what we do is when we find that

         18  someone is making a mistake like that, is you take

         19  the appropriate action against that officer or

         20  supervisor who failed to do their proper follow-up,

         21  proper checks that should have been done before you

         22  hit the door.

         23                 But what we do, in terms of, a lot of

         24  times the precinct is aware that they're coming in

         25  there, but there are times when they're not.
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          2                 When I was in OCCB and currently

          3  today, there are certain confidential investigations

          4  that are going on, and the less people that know

          5  about it, the better for the officer's safety. We

          6  have undercover officers out there and certainly we

          7  don't want everybody, including the officers in the

          8  precincts to know that we have undercover officers

          9  out there working an area. It will be a danger to

         10  the undercover officers as we see it. So, I'm not

         11  saying in every occasion, but there are times when

         12  it's not appropriate to notify the precinct command

         13  that you are currently doing an operation out there

         14  in that command.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: But here is a

         16  situation that they hit the wrong apartment, senior

         17  citizens in the apartment, the precinct is not

         18  notified, but everyone is under the impression that

         19  it was the precinct and not narcotics. And the

         20  community doesn't know if there was any response to

         21  the officers that actually did what they did,

         22  knowing that it was wrong.

         23                 So, I'm saying, how do we find out,

         24  how does the community find out, that this happened,

         25  what took place, and if there was any -- because it
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          2  was an embarrassing situation, because everybody

          3  thought it was the precinct, and it wasn't the

          4  precinct that had any involvement with that at all?

          5                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Well, we discussed

          6  this issue in-house, and what we were talking about

          7  doing is, one of the things we're looking at doing

          8  is, on the day of the operation, we're getting ready

          9  to have an operation, to have the precinct personnel

         10  present with us when we do it. This way there is no

         11  question about who, whether the precinct knows about

         12  it once an operation has been executed. So, that's

         13  one of the ways we're looking around on how to get

         14  around that.

         15                 Certainly, we're asking our precinct

         16  commanders and our narcotics commanders to at least

         17  talk a little bit more, communicate a little bit

         18  more, so that they're aware of when an operation is

         19  going to occur in the precincts, so that if

         20  something goes down, at least the precinct will know

         21  about it and the precinct then has the mechanism to

         22  get that information out to the community.

         23                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Because that was a

         24  real concern and it created a lot of tension within

         25  the communities as it relates to that.
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          2                 And then just lastly, since the

          3  existence of CPR, are there yearly evaluations that

          4  are made available so that we can actually see what

          5  evaluations have been made, what are the

          6  recommendations for the changes that took place? How

          7  much of Compstat is this a part of, so that we'll

          8  know those numbers, what happened, and the response;

          9  we'd like to see it, if you can make that available

         10  to us?

         11                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: I don't think there's

         12  any stats on how much of Compstat has been a part

         13  of.

         14                 One of the things that with this new

         15  strategy the Police Commissioner is going to be

         16  bringing out shortly, is that it will become part of

         17  the Compstat process, that commanding officers will

         18  be held accountable for ensuring that their officers

         19  are out there in the community, that they're meeting

         20  with the community and that they're interacting with

         21  the community in positive manners, as opposed to

         22  just interacting with the community when they're

         23  being called for, calls for services.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: Thank you,

         25  Chair Vallone.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. And

          3  just for the record, we did have an entire hearing

          4  on the warrant process after Alberta Spruill which

          5  delved in detail into these questions.

          6                 Chief Zeigler, just let me first

          7  commend you for the work you do. I know I've seen

          8  you all over the City, as has Chair Seabrook, at

          9  these different meetings the City Council has had

         10  many Trilevel Task Forces at many, you have your own

         11  meetings, and recently there was a stabbing down at

         12  the Astoria Houses, and I had about ten ministers in

         13  about a month ago, and I think you were the only one

         14  from your unit that was not there, had so many

         15  community officers there at my office at a moment's

         16  notice, and that's the way you guys operate. I see

         17  your two new liaisons. I was with them at a recent

         18  Muslim dinner in my district and they did a great

         19  job. The person who didn't do a great job was the

         20  Human Rights Commissioner who is representing the

         21  so-called "Flying Imams" who gave a very incendiary

         22  speech, which I thought was despicable, but these

         23  guys did a great job.

         24                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And it's good to

                                                            47

          1  CIVIL RIGHTS, IMMIGRATION AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  see Inspector Borrer (phonetic), formerly of the

          3  114th Precinct. He and I came in together. He used

          4  to go to so many community meetings, that I used to

          5  joke that he was either running against me or

          6  stalking me. One or the other. I'm not sure who he

          7  upset to get transferred from my district to Charles

          8  Barron's district, but that's what happened to him.

          9  But as people know in the police community, that's

         10  actually a huge vote of confidence to go to a

         11  troubled precinct.

         12                 So, let's start with community

         13  affairs officers themselves. It's important to

         14  realize that they are not the beat cops that so many

         15  people want back. One of the biggest complaints we

         16  hear when we go out on the streets, we want the beat

         17  cops back, we want the people who know the district

         18  back.

         19                 So, let's start with what is a

         20  community affairs officer's job description? How

         21  many in each precinct and is there a standard for

         22  how many should be in each precinct?

         23                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: There is no standard

         24  on how many should be in a precinct. Most precincts,

         25  obviously have two, at least two, and then you have
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          2  the patrol boroughs, which may have three or four in

          3  the patrol boroughs themselves, and then on top of

          4  that you have my staff that actually coordinates all

          5  of the activities for all of them throughout the

          6  City. What they do is they get out there and they

          7  get to know the community and they find out what the

          8  issues are and they are the link between the Police

          9  Department and the community. They're the ones that

         10  when someone in the community has an issue they

         11  should go to, so that that information, that issue

         12  can be translated up through the proper channels so

         13  that we can resolve them.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So they don't do

         15  actual patrolling, correct?

         16                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: They don't do

         17  patrolling, no.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: How do you go

         19  about assigning someone's community affairs? I think

         20  you spoke about the training a little bit, but do

         21  they get picked from the force? Do they volunteer

         22  for this? Is there an effort to put people, I assume

         23  there is, but let me hear about it, who are in tune

         24  with certain communities, either with the culture or

         25  just old fashioned, knowing the alleyways, knowing
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          2  the business people from the districts, how do they

          3  get assigned to a specific area?

          4                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: They're primarily

          5  volunteers. What the commanders usually do is they

          6  find some officers in their commands who not only

          7  have time and experience out there but know the

          8  community, that knows how to have dialogue with the

          9  community, that they see that the community trusts,

         10  and those are usually the ones that are picked for

         11  Community Affairs Officers.

         12                 After they're picked by the

         13  Commanding Officers, we train them. We give them

         14  additional trainings. And we have quarterly

         15  trainings with them where we bring them up to One

         16  Police Plaza and we give them trainings on a number

         17  of different issues that may be relevant to their

         18  particular communities. So, that's how they're

         19  normally picked.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, so those

         21  are the Community Affairs Officers. Now, what about

         22  the actual beat officers, is there any effort to

         23  make sure that they know their communities? Are they

         24  assigned for any length of time at a certain

         25  precinct? Well, let's start with that before I move
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          2  on.

          3                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Yes. The beat officer

          4  varies precinct-by-precinct. There is no set policy

          5  on how many beat officers a precinct will have, or

          6  their precinct will have any at all. So, it varies.

          7  Usually what happens is a commander, when he does

          8  have beat officers, is that he or she will assign

          9  those beat officers to a particular walking foot

         10  post in a precinct for certain hours, seven days a

         11  week.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Sorry, as often

         13  happens, as we Chair, 7,000 things are going on at

         14  the same time, so I'm hoping someone else was

         15  getting the answer to the question I asked him and

         16  absorbing it.

         17                 You got it, Joe? Okay.

         18                 What about, again, one of the biggest

         19  complaints we hear is we need the beat cop back.

         20  Much of this is just a function of not having the

         21  same amount of police officers as we had in the

         22  past, and I'll go into that in a little bit, but do

         23  you have officers patrolling the streets anymore,

         24  and how many do we have now, as opposed to how many

         25  we've had in years past?
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          2                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: I did a survey before

          3  I came here on the number of officers that as you

          4  recall them, beat officers walking the beat, and

          5  throughout the City there's only 300, about 300

          6  officers Citywide that are patrolling the streets,

          7  including 18 in the Housing Bureau. But that number

          8  varies. It could vary month-to-month, week-to-week,

          9  and so it's not a fixture that we do now in the

         10  Police Department, only because we have so many

         11  issues that confront us. And, therefore, we're

         12  constantly pulling officers from here and there to

         13  address different issues, and at the same time, as

         14  you know, our recruiting efforts have not been the

         15  greatest, and so therefore we don't have the level

         16  officers that we need.

         17                 However, however, this is why we're

         18  coming up with a strategy. Because we're saying that

         19  every officer should be a beat officer, whether you

         20  ride a car, whether you ride a scooter or whether

         21  you walk a beat, that you should be out there, that

         22  you should do the same thing that a beat officer

         23  does, that you should be able to get out there and

         24  you should be able to know the community.

         25                 So, we're not excusing any more
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          2  officers that because they don't work on foot at a

          3  particular beat. We're not excusing them from doing

          4  the job that a beat officer should be doing. We're

          5  saying that you should be doing it, and we're going

          6  to start holding them accountable to do that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Before I move on

          8  with a few more questions, since this is a community

          9  policing hearing, we have some of our most important

         10  members of the community here today with us up in

         11  the balcony.

         12                 Hey, kids, how are you doing?

         13                 I'm going to turn it over to Council

         14  Member Gentile, to explain to us who they are and to

         15  introduce them.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,

         17  Mr. Chairman. And I'm really pleased to have with us

         18  today the second grade class from Public School 102,

         19  the Bayview School in Bayridge, in the beautiful

         20  Borough of Brooklyn.

         21                 Welcome. And this is a second grade

         22  class, and they're very excited, and they get to see

         23  our police officers here testifying and talking

         24  about how they help keep our community safe. And

         25  certainly, I think we all know we all want a safe
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          2  community, and certainly a fun community, and you

          3  have your new playground and hopefully when you get

          4  back in September that playground will be open and

          5  you will be playing in it in a very nice, safe

          6  community of Bayridge.

          7                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

          9  Council member.

         10                 Kids, as your Council member was

         11  saying, this is what democracy is all about. This is

         12  where we practice it here in New York City. This is

         13  the New York City Council. Council Member Gentile

         14  represents you. I'm sure your parents all voted for

         15  him. And he does an excellent job here on this

         16  Committee, and we, on your behalf, question City

         17  agencies. Today we're questioning the Police

         18  Department. And they are here answering our

         19  questions and we're hopefully asking the questions

         20  that you want us to ask.

         21                 So, that's what it's all about, and

         22  if you have any questions, send them down and we'll

         23  ask them, okay?

         24                 Okay, let me get back to where I was.

         25  You said you did a beat officer survey, that's very
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          2  interesting to me. How do you determine that there

          3  were 300 beat officers; what made that happen?

          4                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Well, this is what the

          5  Commanding Officers, we spoke to the precinct COs

          6  and the Housing Police service area COs, and

          7  basically we asked them what beat officers do you

          8  have out there currently, and that's where we got

          9  the 300 number about.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Our local

         11  precincts are down from, many are down from 270

         12  officers to about 170 officers now-a-days, and we

         13  don't see the police officers walking the streets as

         14  we used to, who knew the communities, who knew the

         15  store owners, knew the bad guys and the good guys.

         16  And that's a huge problem. A lot of that is a

         17  function of the fact that we used to have 41,000

         18  police officers back in 2001, now it will very soon

         19  be under 36,000, if things continue to go as they

         20  are with recruiting, and it's felt most at the

         21  precinct level, at the beat cop level.

         22                 You also mentioned two other

         23  programs, you mentioned other concerns and what

         24  those are clearly are Operation Atlas, which helps

         25  keep us safe from terrorism, and Operation Impact,
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          2  which is when you send officers to certain

          3  high-crime areas, both of which deplete local

          4  precincts. How do those, again, affect your ability

          5  to do community policing?

          6                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Well, they certainly

          7  affect because they drain on our staffing, but

          8  they've been effective programs, but they certainly

          9  drain on our ability to do community policing,

         10  because the officers and Impact are primarily sent

         11  to precincts where we've had spikes in crime. And,

         12  so, we send them there to address crime conditions,

         13  and so a precinct that may not have as much crime

         14  may not see those officers or see the bulk of those

         15  officers. And those officers are usually sent there

         16  for a period of at least six months until next class

         17  graduates before they are now being dispersed into

         18  certain precincts. So that impacts on us, and the

         19  same thing with Atlas which certainly deals with our

         20  terrorism issues, that impacts on our ability to

         21  deploy officers on foot to do community policing out

         22  there in all the precincts throughout the City,

         23  because we utilize officers throughout the City for

         24  those programs.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I have a lot of
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          2  follow-ups on that, but I'll go to Council members

          3  first.

          4                 Part of community policing would

          5  clearly be to alert communities to a pattern of

          6  crime that the Police Department has determined

          7  exists in a specific community.

          8                 Now, because of your use of Compstat,

          9  your use of the real time crime sensor, and just the

         10  training that your Department receives, this

         11  Department is probably aware of trends that most

         12  other Departments would never be able to pick up on,

         13  and I'm sure, as you know, and as former Prosecutors

         14  Gentile and I know most of this crime is committed

         15  by -- most of crimes are committed by a few people,

         16  so that necessarily means that most crime is

         17  patterns because it's the same very bad people

         18  committing certain robberies, certain crimes.

         19                 Now, that leads to a very tough

         20  decision for the Police Department as to when to

         21  alert a community as to a pattern of crime, such as

         22  we recently saw with taxi drivers, or we recently

         23  saw with bodega owners, and clearly you don't want

         24  to alert the community with every pattern you

         25  discover, or that would just cause the community to
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          2  constantly be looking over its shoulder and ruin

          3  their quality of life. And, in fact, there are other

          4  concerns, such as how close you are to actually

          5  catching this person, and you don't want to drive

          6  that person underground for a few months where they

          7  resurface some place else, if you put out a major

          8  alert.

          9                 So, how is this decision made, and in

         10  what way are you involved in alerting the community

         11  once that decision is made?

         12                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: The decision to alert

         13  the community about a particular crime that occurs

         14  is usually from the detective investigator. With him

         15  and his or her bosses, they make the determination

         16  whether this is something we need to get out to the

         17  public, and it may be something that we present to

         18  DCPI, which gets out to the media, or it could be a

         19  case where we just want to go out in the

         20  neighborhood and inform the public as to what's

         21  going on.

         22                 In fact, my office, and with the

         23  assistance of all the community affairs throughout

         24  the City are constantly notifying the community when

         25  there is an issue going on.
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          2                 What we do particularly is we develop

          3  flyers, we send officers out into communities, we go

          4  put flyers on the doors. For instance, if there is a

          5  burglary pattern occurring in a building, we'll go

          6  into that building and we'll flood that building

          7  with flyers saying that burglaries are occurring in

          8  the buildings, these are the hours that it's

          9  occurring and this is how it's happening.

         10                 If it's a commercial robbery,

         11  normally we go down the streets, we go into the

         12  stores, we inform the business owners what's going

         13  on. So, we do a constant effort in terms of trying

         14  to notify people when a pattern is occurring.

         15                 But it's not easy all the time to

         16  discern whether it's an actual pattern, but we do go

         17  out and do outreach in the communities for that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: When you say

         19  that the decision is made by the detective

         20  investigator, is that within the local precincts? Is

         21  that in consultation with anyone? Explain more

         22  clearly what that means.

         23                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: It means that usually

         24  every case that -- every crime that's committed in

         25  New York City is assigned to a specific
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          2  investigator, and he or she runs with that case. And

          3  what that investigator does is consult with his or

          4  her boss, and sometimes it will go all the way up

          5  the ladder to the Chief of Detectives as to what we

          6  should do and how much information we should give

          7  out to the public, and once that decision is made to

          8  give that information out to the public, they'll

          9  inform my office, or they'll inform the precincts

         10  and we'll put that information out to the public,

         11  throughout the City.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, sometimes,

         13  as you said, it's hard to discern a pattern and

         14  that's one of the criteria that's used, whether

         15  there is actually a pattern.

         16                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: What are some of

         18  the other criteria that's used?

         19                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: To discern whether

         20  there is a pattern?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Well, first of

         22  all, whether there's a pattern, but more importantly

         23  for this hearing, at what point do you alert the

         24  public.

         25                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Well, I think that one
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          2  of the things is it's based on what's going on, what

          3  type of crime it is. And when you have an egregious

          4  crime and there is a lot of injuries or there's a

          5  potential for injuries, what we do is, we will at

          6  that point in time, I shouldn't say we, but the

          7  Detective Bureau again are the ones who will make

          8  the determination in consultation with their

          9  supervisors whether we should get that information

         10  out to the public.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, again, I

         12  have a lot of follow-ups with that, but we have

         13  other Council members with questions. We also have

         14  been joined by Council Member Eugene. Thank you for

         15  joining us.

         16                 And we will go now to Council Member

         17  Foster.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Good morning.

         19  How are you?

         20                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Good morning.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: I feel very

         22  fortunate. I have a great Community Affairs Officer,

         23  Detective Wottley (phonetic). He's almost like there

         24  goes that news van, he's everywhere. And when we had

         25  the fire on Woodycrest, which was two blocks from my
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          2  house and then the funeral - excellent work. My

          3  Community Council is very active, Clergy Council,

          4  both in the 42 and the 44. My question is how much

          5  involvement do the Community Councils and the

          6  Community Affairs Officers actually have with the

          7  Commanding Officers? There seems to be a disconnect,

          8  in that Officer Wottley knows everyone and obviously

          9  is the community guy, but there doesn't seem to be

         10  that same type of relationship with many of the

         11  officers and the commanding officers.

         12                 So, just I want to know the

         13  connection.

         14                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Well, the Precinct

         15  Community Council meetings are monthly meetings, and

         16  it's open to business leaders and also community

         17  members from that community. And the commanding

         18  officer is supposed to be present at those meetings.

         19  So there should be no disconnect at all with the

         20  Precinct Commanding Officer and the community.

         21                 Now, what we're finding is that

         22  sometimes, and as you say there is the Community

         23  Affairs Officers and certain beat officers may

         24  attend that meeting, and some of the other precinct

         25  officers may not have been attending as often as
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          2  they should have. And, so, what we're going to be

          3  doing, and that's part of our strategy, is to get

          4  more of the precinct officers, the everyday guy who

          5  is patrolling in the precinct in the sector, to get

          6  him or her to attend those meetings, to get to know

          7  the people.

          8                 Yes, that's the disconnect that we've

          9  discovered on our end, is that we need more of our

         10  officers to get out there and know the Precinct

         11  Council members. But also we need more of the

         12  community to come to the Precinct Council meetings.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Oh,

         14  absolutely.

         15                 Yes, that's a given. I know that what

         16  particularly struck me was when you were talking

         17  about with the upcoming class and bringing them out,

         18  I have many, and I'm just thinking about my

         19  community, I have many people who are integral to

         20  the community who have been there, since the first

         21  flood, but they're not going to be the ones that

         22  come to the Community Council. They're going to be

         23  the ones that, you know, Detective Wottley knows to

         24  go speak to. I think Ms. Diaz, 93, lives on

         25  Woodycrest, goes to mass at Sacred Heart every
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          2  morning. Everyone knows her and can tell you kind of

          3  what's going on. Those are the type of relationships

          4  that I think we need.

          5                 I know 170th, big thoroughfare, there

          6  has to be better communication, or just more

          7  visibility, for simple things. You know, I've walked

          8  by officers and said good morning, and I'm like good

          9  morning, good morning, and I do that, and it's not

         10  just officers, so I'm not saying they don't just

         11  speak. I say good morning to everyone and people, I

         12  don't know, maybe I'm offensive, just don't look

         13  like they want to say good morning back. But

         14  creating a real community type of dialogue, not a

         15  back and forth where you said this, I said that, but

         16  creating relationships. And the reason I'm asking,

         17  like I said, Community Council, very active, my

         18  Clergy Council, very active, my Community Affairs

         19  Officer, we see him. We don't see everyone else

         20  until something happens, and I think that's the

         21  problem.

         22                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: I agree with you,

         23  certainly. That's part of what we heard as we went

         24  around the City again and again and again. And

         25  that's why we realize a lot of people in the
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          2  community don't come out to the Precinct Council

          3  meetings, for whatever reason. As much as we

          4  publicize it and we push it, people don't come out.

          5  So, we realize we have to go out into the

          6  communities. And that's one of the things we're

          7  going to be doing. We're going to get these officers

          8  out in the communities. We would hope that you open

          9  some doors for us and all the Council members open

         10  some doors for us to get these officers out there in

         11  the community so that you don't just see the

         12  Community Affairs Officer, that you see more than

         13  the Community Affairs Officer. So that we could meet

         14  the little old lady who has a shop down on whatever

         15  avenue it may be. We want to be out in the

         16  community.

         17                 We feel that in order for the

         18  officers and the community to open up those lines of

         19  communication, there has to be positive interactions

         20  between the officers and the community. And that

         21  positive interaction has to be ongoing. It can't be

         22  just, well, I came by today and that's it. It had to

         23  be ongoing.

         24                 And this is something different.

         25  We're asking officers, because we ask them to do an
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          2  awful lot of work as it is now, but we're asking

          3  them to do a lot more because we realize there was a

          4  need for it. There was a need to open up the lines

          5  of communications with the community.

          6                 And, so, this is some of the things

          7  that we're going to be doing.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: I think in

          9  that regard you will also be creating an environment

         10  where -- you know, at one of the hearings we did a

         11  young man, very intelligent, in school, says every

         12  day on his way home he's stopped by the police,

         13  asked to show ID, and he's going through the ritual.

         14  And he's like, back in the day they knew who I was,

         15  I lived in -- you know, he lives in a housing

         16  project, but now, because everyone changes, and even

         17  though we claim there is no profiling, he fits the

         18  profile, young, Latino, with braids, if we can get

         19  to the point where I know you and you know me, then

         20  we don't have these constant interactions. And black

         21  and Latino males, but especially black males, are

         22  the only ones that actually do courses on what to do

         23  when you're stopped by the police, and how to

         24  answer. And in many communities you don't have

         25  actual courses and a little card to keep in your
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          2  wallet what to do when you're stopped by the police,

          3  even when you're going home, when you're in your

          4  community. And, so, the need is so great, and I keep

          5  mentioning Officer Wottley, because he knows the

          6  kids, he knows the people in the community and it

          7  goes a very long way in getting back to a level of

          8  respect both towards the police and for the police

          9  towards the community. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

         11  Council member. I just one to comment on one or two

         12  things you said. Your good morning story reminds

         13  Councilman Seabrook of a breakfast we just had with

         14  Ray Kelly where he basically agreed with you and

         15  said, you know, he gets his police officers when

         16  they come to the force with their good points and

         17  their bad points. They're already people.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Exactly.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And you can't

         20  train someone to be friendly, and there's only so

         21  much you can do. If you could train someone, I'm

         22  sure Speaker Quinn would have friendliness classes

         23  here at the City Council. But he remarked about what

         24  you remarked about.

         25                 Also, you talked about the police
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          2  officers knowing the people on the streets, and

          3  that's why we're having this hearing. I agree

          4  completely, that's why we need more than 300 beat

          5  cops out of the 36,000 police officers so they don't

          6  have to stop people, many of those stops arise from

          7  people from the community or from the Housing

          8  development saying there are strangers in my

          9  hallway, and there's no way for the police to know

         10  unless they know the people in the community.

         11                 And brochure-wise, you were talking

         12  about a card, but this is an excellent brochure that

         13  you handed out today, and I think you should maybe

         14  do a better job of getting it out to some Council

         15  Members' offices and to the public, because it

         16  really does talk about when an officer can stop you,

         17  what you should do when an officer stops you, how to

         18  make complaints about police officers.

         19                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It's a really

         21  excellent brochure.

         22                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Maybe you should

         24  get some more of these out.

         25                 Council Member Addabbo.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chair. And I want to thank all three

          4  Chairpersons today, and their staff, for putting

          5  together this hearing, which is of utmost importance

          6  to community policing. And Chief, I want to thank

          7  you and everyone here from the NYPD for the job that

          8  you do. I don't think we can stress enough the

          9  importance of community relations with the NYPD.

         10                 It was mentioned earlier about beat

         11  officers and I have three precincts in my district.

         12  I have the 100th, the 102 and the 106. And I can't

         13  tell you how often residents come up to me saying

         14  where are our beat officers? We want to see our beat

         15  officers. And I think it's that direct connect that

         16  the community would have with their beat officers

         17  that is so crucial and important, as was stated

         18  earlier.

         19                 But, Chief, you also mentioned

         20  something that is interesting about the beat

         21  officers and the decline of the beat officers, based

         22  also possibly because the decline in applications

         23  that the NYPD is having.

         24                 We had had a hearing right here in

         25  this Chambers on June 4th in the Public Safety
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          2  Committee regarding the recruitment and issues

          3  there, and I know the NYPD is trying to work out,

          4  the Administration is trying to work out some of the

          5  problems they're having with recruitment. But is it

          6  safe to say if we can resolve those problems with

          7  recruitment, and actually see an increase in

          8  applications, and obviously the personnel of the

          9  NYPD, we can see an increase also in the beat

         10  officers?

         11                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Well, I don't want to

         12  jump to that conclusion. I say that that's one of

         13  the issues that affects the number of beat officers

         14  that we have. But there are a lot of other issues

         15  that affect the number of beat officers that a

         16  precinct has. As you know, this is an error of

         17  terrorism, and we now do a lot more things now than

         18  we've done ten years ago, in terms of what we demand

         19  of police officers. The number of calls for services

         20  have increased dramatically, precincts averages are

         21  somewhere in the neighborhood of 45,000 calls for

         22  services, and that doesn't include where someone

         23  stops a police officer in the street. That means

         24  those are calls that are coming through 9-1-1, 40 -

         25  45,000 they're averaging. So, there's a lot of
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          2  things that the officers are doing out there that

          3  impact on where they can be deployed and how they

          4  can be deployed. Certainly I can assure you that

          5  that's one of the things that the Department will

          6  certainly look at if we get more officers.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Again, the

          8  only reason why I bring it up is because it was

          9  during your conversation here that you had

         10  mentioned, there is possibly a lack of beat

         11  officers, and you mentioned low enrollment and the

         12  low number of applications. So, again, I'm hopeful

         13  that in the future, if we see a rise in

         14  applications, we can see a rise in beat officers as

         15  well.

         16                 In your testimony earlier on you had

         17  mentioned great programs, Block Watchers, Civilian

         18  Observer, the Ride Along, which I've been a part of

         19  as well. The Patrol Program, Community Councils, of

         20  course, Citizens Police Academy. I think these are

         21  all great programs that I encourage people in my

         22  district to use, because again, it fortifies the

         23  relationship between the community and the NYPD.

         24  While we have a moment here, and I know you had

         25  handed out information on pamphlets, but while we
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          2  have a moment here for the people here in the

          3  audience and also those who may be watching possibly

          4  on cable, can you just inform us for the record, how

          5  does a person, or what should a person do to become

          6  involved or active, who should they speak to if

          7  they're interested in the Civilian Patrol or Block

          8  Watcher or even Community Council?

          9                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Captain Brown, you

         10  want to answer that?

         11                 CAPTAIN BROWN: If anyone is

         12  interested in participating in any of those

         13  programs, they can contact their precinct,

         14  especially their Precinct Community Affairs Officer.

         15                 Generally they can just contact 3-1-1

         16  and be referred to their local precinct and in turn

         17  their Community Affairs Officer will get back to

         18  them to tell them how they can enroll in any of

         19  those programs.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: And, again,

         21  correct me if I'm wrong. These programs are free for

         22  the most part, right? There is no fee to the

         23  resident who wants to get involved in any of these

         24  programs, correct?

         25                 CAPTAIN BROWN: Yes, that's correct.
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          2  Most of our programs are free of charge.

          3                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: In fact, the five-week

          4  summer youth program, Police Academy that we run, is

          5  free. A week of that five-week, we take at least 200

          6  youths upstate for the whole week camping. So,

          7  that's one of the things we do every summer, and

          8  we're getting the youth together now to start that

          9  up again. It's all free.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: I think this

         11  is great information. Again, anything that we can do

         12  working with you to fortify the relationship between

         13  our residents and NYPD, we should look forward to

         14  work in cooperation with each other.

         15                 You know, Chairman Vallone mentioned

         16  about those informational packets, brochures, I

         17  would love to get a couple hundred for my office as

         18  well to give them out to the community.

         19                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: We get them out to

         20  you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Because I

         22  think, again, we have a lot of work to do with

         23  regards to the relationship between NYPD and our

         24  residents.

         25                 So, I thank you very much for your
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          2  efforts. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. All

          4  of us looked up here and realized none of us knew

          5  about that program. Again, better job maybe

          6  communicating. I think it's the camping program you

          7  mentioned, we were unaware of it and we can't help

          8  you publicize that in the districts.

          9                 Our Civil Rights Chair has some

         10  questions about some recent incidents, so we're

         11  going to go back to him.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: Thank you very

         13  much, Mr. Chair.

         14                 Chief, a couple of weeks ago, and as

         15  you can see, as it relates to the arrest of a number

         16  of people, maybe a couple of hundred people, at the

         17  parade that took place, and I was there, you were

         18  there, and enjoyed the parade, we saw this arrest of

         19  people for, I guess it was a charge of illegal

         20  assembly at the parade, and with a sense of

         21  community policing, how could that have been

         22  avoided, and you just pick up, some people just said

         23  that they were just randomly caught up and picked up

         24  and had nothing to do with any incidents, just

         25  illegal assembly.
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          2                 Perhaps you can kind of talk about

          3  illegal assembly, and then what was this arrest,

          4  because basically some of the other members want to

          5  hear about that as well.

          6                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: As you stated, I was

          7  present at the parade. I was there with the

          8  Community Affairs Officers, and we were responsible

          9  for Manhattan South and also Manhattan North, with

         10  respect to the Community Affairs Officer.

         11                 I didn't observe personally any of

         12  the arrests that were being made. I wasn't informed

         13  until later that the arrests were being made. I

         14  can't tell you why they were arrested. I can say

         15  that they felt that certain people were displaying

         16  gang signs and that they felt that there may have

         17  been some problems that were going to develop, so

         18  the Department took action.

         19                 Since I don't have personal knowledge

         20  of it, I can't tell you exactly why the directive

         21  was made to make an arrest on any given particular

         22  street.

         23                 So, I don't want to speak on

         24  something I really don't know too much about. I just

         25  can tell you that we were out there in force, my
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          2  people, and primarily with 2 million people, we did

          3  a lot to make sure that everybody had a festive and

          4  a very good time. So, the only thing I can say is

          5  that there were a couple of hundred arrests made and

          6  I don't know the circumstances under which they were

          7  arrested.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: Just the

          9  concern that I think concerns me with the illegal

         10  assembly, and the basis of the colors, I mean those

         11  are some of the fads that kids wear, in terms of

         12  where they go and purchase and being a part, not

         13  necessarily being a part of a gang, and that's why

         14  it's so important, why community policing is so

         15  important as it relates to gangs and how that can

         16  solve some issues of gangs, and we need to get a

         17  chance to talk about that.

         18                 But that was my concern that I was at

         19  the parade and I didn't see any of the incidents

         20  that would trigger this type of arrest in those

         21  large numbers, and I stayed there with you and we

         22  left at the same time.

         23                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Well, no, I didn't

         24  leave.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: You didn't?
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          2                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: I was walking around.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: Okay. I didn't

          4  see what precipitated all of this and the number of

          5  arrests that people had, and that is a real concern

          6  that people have, and I think that one of the

          7  Council members will certainly follow-up when they

          8  get the opportunity. Thank you, Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We've been

         10  joined by Melissa Mark-Viverito. We'll absolutely

         11  follow-up, and she goes after Charles Barron, who

         12  comes next.

         13                 We've also been joined by Gale

         14  Brewer, David Weprin, after all his hard work

         15  getting the budget in and before time, not even on

         16  time. So that we could come down here and spend our

         17  Mondays at Public Safety, Civil Rights, Immigration

         18  hearings. So, thank you, Chair Weprin. And we're

         19  going to go now to Charles Barron.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm sorry, did I

         23  introduce Gale Brewer? I thought I forgot. Sorry.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: And she wants

         25  to be on the list.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: She's on the

          3  list. Gotcha. Okay, Council Member Barron.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: You know, I've

          5  been at this thing a long time, from Commissioner

          6  McGuire back in the seventies and then we had

          7  Commissioner Ward and Commissioner Brown, you know,

          8  one after another we've had hearings. We have

          9  congressional hearings, we had community hearings.

         10  I've heard enough, quite frankly. I don't even go to

         11  the hearings because I know what the community is

         12  going to say and I basically know what the police

         13  response is going to be.

         14                 Even in this last question, how could

         15  you unlawfully assemble at a legal assemblance of a

         16  parade? I mean, a parade is a lawful assemblance.

         17  So, you're unlawfully assembling at a parade. And

         18  then we have some youngsters in the Bushwick who

         19  unlawfully assembled at a funeral, and were arrested

         20  at the funeral for unlawfully assembling at a

         21  funeral. How you do that is just beyond my

         22  imagination. And some were even arrested on their

         23  way to the funeral, the Bushwick incidents.

         24                 I mean, I guess I want to ask you

         25  just straight up, does police racial profiling exist
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          2  in the Police Department? Does the Police Department

          3  engage in racial profiling?

          4                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Well, Councilman, as

          5  you know, we have a policy against racial profiling.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: About the

          7  policy, and excuse me, but do you practice it? I'm

          8  familiar with our policy, I'm familiar with our

          9  laws, are we not supposed to be stopped without

         10  probable cause or reasonable suspicion, that's the

         11  law, but that's not the practice. I'm asking you

         12  simply, do you believe racial profiling is a

         13  practice by police officers in the NYPD?

         14                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: I have no information

         15  to believe that that is the practice of the police

         16  officers in NYPD.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And this is

         18  why we don't solve problems, because you're in

         19  denial. In my belief, you're in denial, if you think

         20  that racial profiling is not practiced.

         21                 So, that's one thing we have to take

         22  off the table for you resolving, because to your

         23  knowledge and your understanding, it just doesn't

         24  happen, because you have never seen it, never heard

         25  of it, in all of your years and experience, you just
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          2  have no knowledge of that, so I don't know how we

          3  solve that one.

          4                 The amount of no-knock warrants in

          5  our areas, as a matter of fact, whatever the

          6  officers are presenting to the judges, and you can

          7  correct me if I'm wrong on this, to get a no-knock

          8  warrant they have to at least have an apartment

          9  under surveillance; is that correct?

         10                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right. So, if

         12  you have an apartment under surveillance, then it

         13  will be very, very difficult for you to be so wrong

         14  so many times, if an apartment is under

         15  surveillance, so you have the address of the

         16  apartment, you've got the no-knock warrant, based on

         17  surveillance, and how come so often, and it happens

         18  many times across the City that no-knock warrants

         19  are executed in the wrong apartments, people are

         20  disrespected, traumatized, and say sorry, and it's

         21  over. There are no consequences that the police

         22  officers pay. I don't believe it's a real mistake. I

         23  think some of it is to get the apartments you think.

         24  I think some of the apartments are not even under

         25  surveillance and they're illegally executed. But
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          2  what about no-knock warrants; do you believe that's

          3  a problem?

          4                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Well, when you say

          5  surveillance, we have different procedures that we

          6  use to try to get into apartments and sometimes that

          7  could be the most difficult thing for us to try to

          8  get into.

          9                 We use undercover officers, we use

         10  informants, and so when you say under surveillance.

         11  Basically my understanding of under surveillance

         12  means that we have someone who is trying to get into

         13  that premises. And that someone could be an

         14  undercover officer, it could sometimes be an

         15  informant, it could sometimes be a neighbor. It

         16  could be anyone.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: But it's under

         18  your jurisdiction. You have it under surveillance.

         19                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: When you say under

         20  surveillance --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: By the Police

         22  Department.

         23                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: We're not sitting

         24  outside looking at that apartment, we're not sitting

         25  in the hallways looking at that apartment, because a
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          2  lot of times we're unable to do that, because

          3  certain areas, you can't sit out on that block for

          4  two minutes without somebody saying, well, the

          5  police are here.

          6                 So, it's not that we have them under

          7  surveillance. And usually when we have a mistake

          8  that occurs such as that, it's because --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And as often.

         10                 CHIEF ZEIGLER:-- Because when you go

         11  into some of the buildings, you know, there's a

         12  twist here, there's a turn there, you may get the

         13  wrong apartment because we were told it was to the

         14  left when actually it was to the right.

         15                 We've been in one particular case

         16  where there was no apartment number on the door. So,

         17  there's been a number of reasons why.

         18                 And like I said earlier, and I'll

         19  admit this, there have been times where we didn't do

         20  our proper checks.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Too many

         22  times.

         23                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Had we done our proper

         24  checks, we wouldn't have had that problem.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Chief, too
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          2  many times. You don't have to live in the projects,

          3  you don't have to be the young lady in the Linden

          4  Houses, who they took her children out of the

          5  apartment. The apartment number was clearly on the

          6  door, and she told them you've got the wrong spot.

          7  They actually took her four children, put them in a

          8  van downstairs, and brought up a dog sniffing up the

          9  place, and cussing her out in front of her children,

         10  and then realized they had the wrong apartment. And

         11  they just get away with it, to go make the same

         12  mistake maybe in another apartment.

         13                 What about consequences? You know,

         14  people say every time we have these incidents we

         15  need better training, cultural sensitivity. You

         16  know, for me I don't care if you don't ever give

         17  them any more training, or improve any training. For

         18  those who want to push training, do that, because we

         19  do that every time.  For the last 30 years I've been

         20  involved in this, we've been pushing training.

         21  Cultural sensitivity. They've got to understand the

         22  black community. You don't. But they should pay

         23  consequences when you know that they're doing

         24  something wrong. The problem that we have, and it's

         25  probably not on you, it's probably more on the
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          2  Commissioner, is that the police don't have to pay

          3  consequences when they're wrong. And you even

          4  reduced discourtesy for them not speaking back to

          5  us. You went to all of those hearings, hardly

          6  anybody said discourtesy was I said hello and the

          7  officer didn't talk back. It's what they do say when

          8  they open up their mouths. It's not that they do say

          9  hi, don't say hi, who cares? But when you're

         10  constantly cussing us out, and you know the language

         11  they use in the street, and it's used often by too

         12  many officers, and when we had congressional

         13  hearings, they said, Congress came in here in '84

         14  and again in '88, said it was systemic, pervasive,

         15  and racial in nature. Then when we get to our

         16  hearing, we need training. We play it down. Yes,

         17  sometimes police don't say hi to you when you say hi

         18  to them. You know that's not even the real problem

         19  in our communities. These officers are off the hook.

         20  And here's a problem we have, and I have to say

         21  this, and I'll say this publicly. I have a great

         22  relationship with Inspector Borrer (phonetic), and

         23  he him and one other inspector was one of the better

         24  ones we have in our community. When I go to

         25  Inspector Borrer's office, we speak frankly,
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          2  honestly, up front. We confront situations, whether

          3  it's the police officers or community crime. We have

          4  a situation where we have in East New York seven

          5  killings in four days, and this is not by police,

          6  this is by community crime. So, now it's rough,

          7  you've got the community engaging in community

          8  crime, self-destructive behavior, we have Father's

          9  Day March to try to stop that. We're going to try to

         10  get more community patrols, we're trying to get more

         11  programs in. Then you got police crime on top of

         12  that. So, we got to deal with the criminals in blue

         13  jeans and the criminals in blue suits. It's just

         14  like a real complicated situation.

         15                 So, when we get a chief, or I get an

         16  inspector here, stop sugar coating it. Stop acting

         17  like racial profiling doesn't exist. We have a few

         18  no-knock problems here and there, you know, most

         19  officers are this and that. We got to get real,

         20  because our community to some extent with crime is

         21  getting out of control, and the police

         22  aggressiveness is getting out of control. I drive to

         23  the communities, sometimes when I see them, the

         24  youngsters with their shoes off, took my son's shoes

         25  off two or three times, around the corner from
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          2  coming home, I'm glad I wasn't there, we would have

          3  both been in jail. But I've seen too often where

          4  innocent young people are being caught up in the

          5  system now and getting records in the name of

          6  community policing. And it has to stop. And it can't

          7  stop if you're in denial that some of this stuff

          8  even exists.

          9                 So, I'm just urging you, we have a

         10  crises on both ends, community crime and police

         11  crime, it both exists, and I'm doing all I can to

         12  get to my community. We're putting posters up,

         13  telling our young people, put the guns down. We go

         14  into our, we're fixing up parks, we're bringing in

         15  programs, but then we got to deal with the police,

         16  after we tell our kids to put the guns down, we got

         17  to deal with some of the knuckleheads in the Police

         18  Department who have absolutely no respect, no

         19  respect for us whatsoever. Sometimes we don't know

         20  whether to call the police or not.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Do you have a

         22  question, Council member?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I'll stop in a

         24  second. I knew you was coming.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I've only given
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          2  you ten, 15 minutes of press conference --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: All right, all

          4  right, all right, I'll stop in a second, Peter.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you,

          6  Charlie.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Welcome,

          8  Peter. I always do this at these hearings, not to

          9  get attention from the media, because I could care

         10  less, and I could go all day long, because they're

         11  not dying in their communities, they have a

         12  different kind of policing. You know, you can have

         13  crime in the white community. You don't get a bunch

         14  of no-knock warrants. All of their youth are not

         15  stopped and frisked, no matter that they have gangs

         16  in the white communities too. There's a different

         17  kind of policing for the black community than there

         18  is for the white community. It exists, when are you

         19  all going to deal with that racial reality and stop

         20  acting like it doesn't exist.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. Now

         22  we'll go to --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I'm not

         24  finished. I want a response.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Oh, there was a
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          2  question?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Yes. There was

          4  a long question, with a long problem.

          5                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: It was quite long.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: See, you all

          7  think it's cute, but, see, our people are dying. You

          8  all could call me what you want, but it's a powder

          9  keg in our communities, and I think this thing can

         10  explode in our faces, if we don't take it more

         11  seriously and stop being in denial and kee kee kee,

         12  giggle giggle giggle, but I'm telling you, we've got

         13  a serious problem. When we have these hearings, this

         14  is the sugar-coated hearings, we're not going to get

         15  to the problem unless we own up to some of the

         16  reality.

         17                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Councilman, my

         18  response to you would be that I don't come here with

         19  my head in the sand. The Police Commissioner

         20  certainly has heard a lot of what I've brought back

         21  to him from the forums that we've had throughout the

         22  City, and that's why we're coming out with the new

         23  strategy that we're coming out with, because we can

         24  talk all we want, but it's time to do something

         25  about it. We're coming up with some things that we
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          2  at least feel will at least start the process going.

          3  As you say, we can get to know the people in the

          4  community, and it's not just, well, hello and how

          5  are you, it goes deeper than that. But we have to

          6  start somewhere, and we certainly have to do

          7  something. And what I'm saying to you is that the

          8  Police Department is here willing to start to do

          9  something about some of the issues that exist

         10  between the police and the community.

         11                 We're starting to do it. I don't sit

         12  in this position as the Chief of Community Affairs

         13  and take any of this lightly. Certainly this is an

         14  issue that affects my community, just as it affects

         15  your community, and I believe that some things need

         16  to be done. Certainly I believe that the Police

         17  Department needs to do things, and that's why we're

         18  doing things and that's why I'm working with the

         19  Police Commissioner to do things, and that's why I'm

         20  here today.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: How many

         22  police paid consequences for cussing us out? Do you

         23  know of any police officers that have been

         24  disciplined for profanity?

         25                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: I didn't come prepared
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          2  to discuss CCRB's --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: All right,

          4  thank you. Thank you.

          5                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: I didn't come

          6  prepared, but --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you very

          8  much. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, let's go

         10  to Council Member Stewart.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         12  Council Member Vallone.

         13                 I just want to touch on a couple of

         14  issues. While we are there, I heard a couple of

         15  members praise their Community Affairs Officers. I

         16  must let you know that I have Domenic Scatto

         17  (phonetic) from the 70th, a fantastic guy, doing a

         18  great job. Also Detective Hutchinson from the 67th,

         19  that I don't think you have any better Community

         20  Affairs Officer anywhere in the United States.

         21                 So, I want you to know that and I

         22  want you to understand that that's the reason why 67

         23  Precinct is one of the largest precincts and we have

         24  one of the best stats, all right? And it's because

         25  of the relationship that we're building.
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          2                 But I have some questions that I

          3  think you might be able to help me with; and that

          4  is, last Labor Day, Sunday, the police officers that

          5  came into Central Brooklyn, they had a field day.

          6  They had a field day in the sense that, you know,

          7  it's Labor Day and the community is a different type

          8  of community than what is in Queens or in Manhattan

          9  or in the Bronx, and they had a field day running

         10  into people's back yards and arresting people and

         11  the charges have to be dropped the next day or two

         12  days later. What I'm saying basically, are these

         13  officers that you import from the other precincts?

         14  Are they trained, are they really briefed on what is

         15  the cultural and what should be done in Central

         16  Brooklyn when it comes to the Labor Day Parade?

         17                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Well, a lot of times

         18  we get officers for the parade or for the

         19  festivities that occurred just prior to the parade.

         20  And we may get them that day, so we don't know

         21  sometimes who we're getting until that particular

         22  day.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Well, listen,

         24  Labor Day Parade has been going on for the past 30

         25  something years. I think every officer should be at
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          2  least trained to the sensitivity and to the culture

          3  of Central Brooklyn. I think it's very important,

          4  because I remember, I can tell you an incident where

          5  we had about three judges, Supreme Court judges and

          6  other dignitaries in a back yard party and they just

          7  came and they embarrassed me. But I couldn't talk to

          8  any one of them because they are not from my

          9  precinct. They're in my precinct doing their job,

         10  they had no officer that is from the precinct at

         11  least with them, at least to understand the culture,

         12  understand that dynamics in that area.

         13                 So, I would like to know that from

         14  now on there is some sort of a training, some sort

         15  of sensitivity as to the culture, as to what's

         16  happening. They can't come into an area and just do

         17  as they want because they are police. So, I want you

         18  to take that back, all right?

         19                 The other thing I want to talk about

         20  is what is the policy in terms of seizure? Because

         21  it seemed to be rampant, not only in one or two of

         22  the precincts, that if there is seizure for let's

         23  say officers go out and they see what we call a

         24  "buttal club" or a "buttal," folks had too much

         25  liquor than they should have had in their
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          2  possession, they seize it and they take it to the

          3  precinct. And they say you have to come down to get

          4  an invoice two days later or three days later.

          5  That's not the correct policy. The policy, if you

          6  take something you're supposed to give them an

          7  invoice at that time. And it seemed to be rampant,

          8  because in several precincts people complain to me

          9  about that, in several precincts, different areas,

         10  and I think that that is a policy that you should

         11  really get out there, let the folks know that any

         12  time they take anything from anyone, whether it's

         13  money, liquor, records, whatever they're taking at

         14  that time, and the invoice or something should be

         15  given at that time. Not a day later, not an hour

         16  later. At that time, at that facility, or from that

         17  address where they're taking it from. Because two

         18  days later or an hour later, the figures change, or

         19  if it is not done properly, who is to know? And even

         20  if the case is dismissed, even if the case is

         21  dismissed, the guy has nothing to go back on it. He

         22  loses all his stuff, and they lose thousands of

         23  dollars. So, that policy I want to see basically

         24  that you go back, really put it in place, let the

         25  officers know in the district, that they're not

                                                            93

          1  CIVIL RIGHTS, IMMIGRATION AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  supposed to seize anything unless they can give a

          3  receipt of what they're taking. I've seen it too

          4  many times, and that, to me, it doesn't look right.

          5  And you know when it happened most of the time?

          6  Coming up to Christmastime, and the folks don't get

          7  back their liquor. They don't get it back. Even if

          8  it is a house party, whatever it is, and fine the

          9  law will take this course, in the sense whether the

         10  judge will dismiss the case or not. But the point,

         11  you have to give some sort of invoice as to what

         12  you're receiving. I'd like you to take that back, as

         13  far as policy is concerned.

         14                 All right, and the last thing I want

         15  to talk about is use of discretion. Use of

         16  discretion sometimes, you know, I don't think we

         17  deal with it right, and I think we should, and

         18  that's what creates a lot of the problem, the

         19  animosity of our officers.

         20                 I'm glad that you brought the

         21  pamphlet. I hope we can get that pamphlet throughout

         22  the districts and throughout all the precincts,

         23  because I will be taking that and I will be reaching

         24  out to you to get some more because when I do my

         25  forum, I want to be able to at least give that out
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          2  to the folks there.

          3                 I think some other folks have

          4  questions. Yes, all right.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: Thank you.

          6                 Council Member Mark-Viverito.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Thank

          8  you, Mr. Chair. Good morning.

          9                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Good morning.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Let's

         11  see how we start it, because I have a couple of

         12  issues I want to discuss. But first of all, I want

         13  to say, as has been said by other colleagues, that,

         14  you know, I've developed a good working relationship

         15  with my local precincts. My district, because of the

         16  fact that it spans two boroughs, I have to deal

         17  between the PSAs and the precincts with seven

         18  precincts. It's very challenging, and actually

         19  eight, if you include Central Park. So, it's three

         20  PSAs, four precincts, it's a lot, you know, to

         21  handle. It's a very challenging district. So, we've

         22  been able to develop a good working relationship.

         23  Assistant Chief Diaz from Manhattan North has been

         24  incredibly supportive, as have the Deputy Inspectors

         25  and the Captains of the local precincts.
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          2                 Having said that, you know, one of

          3  the concerns that I have is that I had an incident

          4  recently in my district, maybe around a month and a

          5  half ago, two months ago, in which nine young

          6  people, ranging from the ages of 14 to 21 were swept

          7  by the Anti-Gang Unit of the Police Department. It

          8  was very aggressive, it was, I think, it seems to

          9  me, based on the people who witnessed it, and some

         10  parents actually that were there with their

         11  children, the children were actually waiting in

         12  front of their building to go to a soccer game and

         13  they were swept up. And I facilitated a meeting

         14  between the Anti-Gang Unit and the individuals that

         15  were arrested, the young people who were actually

         16  taken to the precinct, they were photographed, they

         17  were thrown to the ground, it was incredible what

         18  the response was, what the sense I got was that

         19  these units, whether it's the narcotics unit,

         20  Anti-Gang Unit, you know, they seem to be working

         21  independently. And I don't know to what level they

         22  coordinate with the local precincts. What I've told

         23  Inspector Boyce (phonetic) from the Anti-Gang

         24  Division is that, you know, we, in my office, have

         25  been working very diligently to establish a working

                                                            96

          1  CIVIL RIGHTS, IMMIGRATION AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  relationship with the local precincts to really try

          3  to develop a cooperative relationship to the extent

          4  possible between the community and the police, and

          5  then you have an incident like this, in which just

          6  it really sets us back quite a bit.

          7                 When I asked what the reasons were

          8  for these young people getting arrested, the

          9  response I got was, well, they were wearing colors,

         10  they were flashing signs, and to me, that's not

         11  illegal. To me, if you're affiliated with a gang, I

         12  don't think whether, you know, we have our concerns

         13  about that, but just because of an affiliation, or

         14  because you're wearing certain colors, you know,

         15  that, to me, is not justification or rationale for

         16  being treated and arrested. And these are kids. Some

         17  of them are 14 years old. We are still dealing with

         18  that issue, we have not gotten clarity. But I guess

         19  my question, and then I'm going to lead to the

         20  Puerto Rican Day Parade, because it's kind of

         21  similar to some extent, these units that exist

         22  within the NYPD, whether it's anti-gang, to what

         23  level do they cooperate with the local precincts?

         24  Because that's where a disconnect happens. These

         25  local precincts are working really hard to establish
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          2  working relationships with the community, and then

          3  these acts could set us back considerably.

          4                 So, what role do they play within

          5  policing?

          6                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Well, the units that

          7  you talk about we call "specialized units." A lot of

          8  them coordinate quite well with the precincts. In

          9  fact, they're present at our Compstat meetings every

         10  Thursday. They have to be there. They have to make

         11  sure the precincts know exactly what their

         12  activities are, and the precincts will talk about

         13  what concerns they have. So, there should be the

         14  coordination, because they are meeting at least once

         15  a week together and they're discussing issues that

         16  occur in the particular precinct that's up for

         17  Compstat.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Well,

         19  the message I was getting from that precinct was

         20  that they did not know that this operation was

         21  happening. They did not know that these arrests had

         22  been made. Clearly, when they were arrested, they

         23  were brought to the local precinct, but my sense in

         24  having conversations was that there was not a

         25  communication.
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          2                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Well, the local

          3  precinct doesn't decide whether they should do

          4  operations in that particular precinct or not, but

          5  the local precinct usually knows when they're

          6  working in that precinct. They usually should know

          7  that. Usually they go in and they let them know

          8  we're going to be in your precinct. A lot of times

          9  it's the Commanding Officer who requests that, for

         10  instance, the Gang Unit come into the precinct,

         11  because they have certain issues that they want the

         12  Gang Unit to address. Most of the time they know

         13  that they're going to be in that particular

         14  precinct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Now,

         16  granted, I understand that there is going to be gang

         17  activity in my district, and there are concerns. The

         18  concern I have here is about the overstepping and

         19  the over-aggressive tactics that are used, and the

         20  sense I get is, well, we'll arrest now, deal with

         21  the consequences later, and I don't really think

         22  that that's a good precedent to be setting.

         23                 With regards to the Puerto Rican Day

         24  Parade, there seems to be a similar issue here where

         25  because of certain affiliations, and whatever the
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          2  perception is within the NYPD of what the Latin

          3  Kings is, is not, et cetera, because of

          4  affiliations, then you start doing this sweep where

          5  a lot of innocent people were rounded up. And this

          6  is the concern here again about, we'll arrest now,

          7  deal with the consequences later, that, to me, is

          8  not acceptable. And I think it really sets a bad

          9  precedent. And it's something that we, as people on

         10  the front lines within our community have to deal

         11  with as well, and we have to account for it as well,

         12  because people come to asking us for explanations.

         13                 So, you know, we're following up on

         14  that incident, I have your concerns, the

         15  implementation or the use of the illegal assembly

         16  statute, which is very rare, I understand, in this

         17  City was applied in this case, and again, we're

         18  dealing with a parade where you have a million and a

         19  half people that are participating as either

         20  marching or watching, so how they can do a lawful

         21  assembly, I don't really understand. But my concern

         22  here is how also these different units are

         23  operating, and sometimes it may appear, whether it

         24  just might be rogue in a way, what they're doing is

         25  operations and operating within our districts and
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          2  not the communication.

          3                 So, I'd like to follow-up on that,

          4  you know?

          5                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: And I'll make sure the

          6  Police Commissioner gets your concerns about that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: You

          8  know, obviously, in my community we just had a

          9  double murder in East River Houses, we had a

         10  shooting in Clinton Houses, there is real concerns

         11  and we're trying to work with the community and

         12  really get deeply involved. And I believe very

         13  strongly that community policing is very important,

         14  it's a very important foundation, and I really hope

         15  that it continues to be a cornerstone of the way the

         16  NYPD does its work. I think it's very critical.

         17                 I was very concerned when Sky Watch

         18  was brought into my district, because I don't think

         19  -- I don't like that type of policing. I think that

         20  the beat cop, the cops walking the street, getting

         21  to know the community is the most effective way of

         22  policing. I think many people have validated that it

         23  really does help, in terms of crime fighting. And I

         24  think that we have to also be concerned about what

         25  are the strategies that you're looking at, all the
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          2  strategies that you look at. Sky Watch is one

          3  strategy that's been implemented. I think it's

          4  effective when you're talking about a parade, I

          5  think it's effective when you're talking about a

          6  baseball game, I don't think it's effective in a

          7  residential setting. That's my concern. I spoke out

          8  very vocally against it. I wrote a letter to the

          9  Commissioner about Sky Watch when it came to my

         10  district. I just don't think it's the proper setting

         11  and it sends the wrong message.

         12                 But I hope that there is an interest

         13  here in really expanding the community policing

         14  aspect. So, I just wanted to raise some of those

         15  concerns, and we'll be following up with you on

         16  those items.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. We're

         20  running past our two-hour allotment, so we have two

         21  Council members left, if they would just be brief,

         22  and as I've said, and as Council Member Oddo has

         23  said, any Sky Watches that Council Member Viverito

         24  does not want, you can send to my district.

         25                 And now we'll go to Council Member
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          2  Brewer.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

          4  much. I'm a big fan of Chief Diaz's, too, so please

          5  pass that on.

          6                 I Chair the Technology Committee and

          7  I have a couple of questions that might help.

          8  Sometimes reaching Community Affairs Officers is

          9  difficult. Understandably they have different

         10  shifts, they are not there all the time. What is the

         11  shift schedule? I know we have great ones. We have

         12  two per precinct. So, I'm wondering what is their

         13  shift? And is it possible to have the technology

         14  that's quite common that when you dial a number it

         15  actually rings if you're not there on the cell

         16  phone? Just for Community Affairs.

         17                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Well, there is no

         18  specific shift for a Community Affairs Officer. They

         19  work basically the hours that dictates what's going

         20  on in their command. So, you may see them in the

         21  morning times, you may see them in the afternoon,

         22  you may see them on a midnight shift. There is no

         23  specific time.

         24                 But one of the things that we

         25  recognize is that, such as yourself and other
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          2  community members, is there is a dire need to reach

          3  out to them, and one of the things throughout the

          4  history of the Department is they never had cell

          5  phones. So if you had a cell phone, the cell phone

          6  number, if you have a cell phone if you're a

          7  Community Affairs Officer, it's usually a personal

          8  cell phone. So, recently the Police Commissioner has

          9  approved getting cell phones. I'm in the process now

         10  of getting cell phones for them, and so you'll be

         11  able to reach out to them a lot better. A lot

         12  better, whether it's on the weekends or at night, we

         13  want them to use those cell phones. We want to make

         14  sure the community can reach them.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: My question is

         16  that it is possible technology-wise, when the phone

         17  rings in the precinct at 120 West 82nd Street, at

         18  the 20, at Tiger's phone, that it could then go to

         19  his cell; can it be that kind of cell phone, or do

         20  you have to re-bid it for that?

         21                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Well, I think that

         22  technology you're talking about is call forwarding.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Yes.

         24                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: And certainly it's not

         25  the cell phone, it's the phone in the precinct
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          2  itself --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I know --

          4                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: If the one has that

          5  technology, certainly it could happen.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I'm just

          7  saying that little piece has to go together.

          8                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Yes, I don't think

          9  that's a big issue. I think it could probably move

         10  in that direction.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: But I'm just

         12  saying, Citywide that should be the policy, because

         13  otherwise elected officials -- I don't want to

         14  belabor the point, but the technology for the

         15  Community Affairs Officers has got to improve,

         16  that's a big step.

         17                 Do you know when those cell phones

         18  might arrive?

         19                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: My office is working

         20  on it now. As soon as management -- well, we have

         21  the money and it's a question now of ordering the

         22  phones, and that's what they're doing now. So, I'm

         23  hoping by the end of this month, virtually next

         24  month --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: We can
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          2  announce it on Night Out.

          3                 My next question is, just in terms of

          4  announcing information, I mean, I know you have a

          5  lot of programs, but like even National Night Out,

          6  which we all participate in, it's like an inside

          7  discussion. The whole community does not know. And I

          8  do think the Police Department, between Community

          9  Affairs, but also between the Mayor's Office and so

         10  on, could do a better job of telling people about

         11  these events. There are police groupies, we know

         12  them, they go to every police meeting. But that's

         13  not the community that we're trying to reach. So, I

         14  mean working with the Mayor's Office, you might be

         15  able to think of a different way of publicity; is

         16  that possible? Is that being considered?

         17                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: It is. In fact, my

         18  staff and I were talking about Night Out, and we

         19  were deciding how we would handle it this year.

         20  Because some of you may know, we have Night Outs in

         21  all the five boroughs, some are well attended, and

         22  some are not so well attended, and so what can we do

         23  to kind of get that information out? But we're

         24  looking at it, it certainly is something that we

         25  need to better improve on.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Is the change

          3  of commanders that takes place every two or three

          4  years, is that mandated? Because that does send -- I

          5  don't understand the reason behind it, but it does,

          6  when you have a commander who gets to know the

          7  neighborhood and then he or she is gone, is that

          8  something that's going to change? Or do you think

          9  that there will always be that continual shifting?

         10                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: We have no mandated

         11  two or three years change over in commanders. Some

         12  change over in two or three years, some are there

         13  even longer. It's at the discretion of the Police

         14  Commissioner, as to when a commander will start

         15  working in a command and how long.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

         17                 The other thing is My Space.com, that

         18  is an interesting technology phenomenon. It's

         19  popular. Let me tell you what the challenges are.

         20  You hear about them in terms of the young people,

         21  and gang activity on the My Space.com, a lot of my

         22  principals are calling me and stating that the kids

         23  are going there, but there's another aspect to it

         24  which I experience, and I want to know, are you

         25  using My Space.com? Are your detectives looking for
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          2  individuals who have got challenges, should be

          3  working -- because when my kids identify people who

          4  jumped them, this happened just the other day, the

          5  detective goes through the mugshot. No mugshot. The

          6  kids are actually on My Space.com, in all their

          7  colors.

          8                 So, I'm just saying that whole issue,

          9  your detectives should be briefed on what My

         10  Space.com is all about; is that taking place?

         11                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: I can't say yes or no

         12  whether or not they're using that. I can only say

         13  that the detectives use as many resources that are

         14  legally possible. They use those resources to try to

         15  solve cases.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. I mean,

         17  that's number one, in terms of young people. And I

         18  don't want it to be used in the wrong way, but I do

         19  think that young people know how to use it and maybe

         20  your detectives could also learn.

         21                 Just finally, prevention. One of the

         22  issues I've always, and I've been working in this,

         23  in the Council for a little while, but in the

         24  community for a very long time, like a lot of my

         25  colleagues, when the beat officers or the Community
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          2  Affairs Officers see that there is young people

          3  gathering, and they have challenges, they never tell

          4  anybody. In other words, how do you get to the

          5  settlement houses, or the other community-based

          6  organizations? Because a prevention obviously is

          7  what we want as opposed to an arrest.

          8                 Is that something that's part of the

          9  Community Affairs philosophy, or is that too much on

         10  the social work side?

         11                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: If I understand your

         12  question, we do a lot of prevention-type stuff, and

         13  we in the Community Affairs reach out to youths and

         14  we push them into a lot of our programs, whether

         15  it's in the PAL, whether it's in Explorers or

         16  whether it's in some of the programs that we have

         17  going on in the different high schools throughout

         18  the City. So, prevention is, we don't wait for

         19  something to happen, we have a lot of programs that

         20  we actually reach out to the students.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. I mean,

         22  you do some. I'm not going to say that. But I

         23  wouldn't say that the commanders or the Community

         24  Affairs, particularly the new ones, know all of

         25  these programs. And I'm just saying there are good
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          2  police programs, but there are also other

          3  community-based programs that have a longer, more

          4  sustainable focus.

          5                 I know every single one of the

          6  programs you just mentioned. There are better ones,

          7  with all due respect.

          8                 So, I'm just saying that should be

          9  also part of prevention, so we don't end up with an

         10  arrest.

         11                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Right.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. The

         13  final thing, and then I'll stop is, when you have

         14  new Community Affairs Officers, you may tell the

         15  precinct community meetings, but you don't tell the

         16  community. You don't send out an e-mail. You don't

         17  tell the community board on a regular basis. That's

         18  what community is all about. So, I would suggest

         19  that that needs to take place.

         20                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Okay, thank you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. And

         23  Council Member Brewer brings up a good point. If we

         24  skip past the technology regarding call forwarding,

         25  how about just picking up the phones at the
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          2  precincts? That's one of the biggest complaints we

          3  all get, and it's happened to every one of us up

          4  here. Forget forwarding to cell phones. And I know

          5  the Commissioner mentioned something about hiring a

          6  program of receptionists or something like that to

          7  greet people and perhaps pick up the phones, but how

          8  are we improving that?

          9                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: We're looking at a

         10  number of things to do. We haven't come up with an

         11  answer yet. The receptionist program that the Police

         12  Commissioner is talking about, I think is the one

         13  where we have, when you walk into the precinct, we

         14  have receptionists that greet you as you come into

         15  the door. We have 18 of them Citywide and there's

         16  been a demand for more and I think the Department is

         17  looking to hire additional ones.

         18                 But yes, the whole issue about

         19  answering the precinct phone when the public calls

         20  is an issue that we up here have been scratching our

         21  heads about for the longest, because it is a

         22  constant issue that we hear and certainly the

         23  Council member, and I heard as we went around the

         24  City. So, we're talking with the Police Commissioner

         25  on how do we come up with a better model,
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          2  so-to-speak, so that when you call you could

          3  promptly answer it.

          4                 So, I just don't have the answer yet

          5  for you on what we're going to be doing to try and

          6  improve it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It's funny, you

          8  have the greatest real time crime technology and

          9  computer, but try and pick up the phone and you guys

         10  are stuck.

         11                 My last question is, you mentioned a

         12  new immersion program before, and you kind of went

         13  through it very quickly, but it sounds very

         14  interesting. You bring recruits into different

         15  neighborhoods? How does that work?

         16                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: What we're going to do

         17  is we're going to -- what we're going to be doing is

         18  we're going to be bringing, when the class graduates

         19  at the end of June, we're going to be taking them

         20  out and they're going to be doing a certain amount

         21  of walking in the community each week, out there in

         22  the community getting to know the different

         23  businesses, the religious institutions, the schools,

         24  and individuals in the community. And we want to

         25  expand on that. We want to start it small and we're
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          2  going to continue more. So, we want to show the new

          3  officers that part of being a police officer is also

          4  part of getting to know the community.

          5                 And we're going to be doing that with

          6  the new officers, but we're also going to be doing

          7  something similar with the officers that are

          8  currently in the precincts.

          9                 But the new officers are the ones

         10  that we're going to be holding their hand,

         11  so-to-speak, for another six months out there in the

         12  precincts. Because this is what we've heard, we've

         13  heard this from the community time and time again,

         14  and so we figured this is a way of trying to do it,

         15  is getting them out the door and getting them

         16  involved with the community. And we're going to hold

         17  them accountable for being involved with the

         18  community.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Have you done

         20  this with recruits in the past? Is this the first

         21  time?

         22                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: This is the first time

         23  it's ever been done.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It sounds like a

         25  good idea.
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          2                 Now, we've got two Council members

          3  who just came in recently, and I've explained to

          4  both that you have been there for over two hours

          5  now, and we've all taken breaks and they both have

          6  assured me they're going to be as brief as possible,

          7  but they do have some concerns for their community.

          8                 So, first we'll go to Council Member

          9  Monserrate.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chair.

         12                 Good afternoon, Chief. I have a few

         13  questions just to follow-up on the questions that my

         14  colleague, Melissa Mark-Viverito asked regarding the

         15  Puerto Rican Day Parade. How many total arrests were

         16  there made on the parade?

         17                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: I don't have those

         18  figures. I'm told that there were, what I've read,

         19  is about 200, 200 and something arrests were made.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Out of

         21  those 200, how many were allegedly gang involved?

         22                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Well, Councilman, as

         23  was stated earlier, my involvement with the parade

         24  was dealing with the community aspect of it. I had

         25  no personal knowledge of any arrest activity that
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          2  was taking place. So, it's hard for me to speak on

          3  it when I really don't have personal knowledge. The

          4  people that made the arrests were not under my

          5  command, and nor did I see any particular arrests

          6  being made in the course of my walking up and down

          7  Fifth Avenue and Madison Avenue.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay. So,

          9  before the parade, I'm assuming that the commanders

         10  of Manhattan, that's Manhattan North, right?

         11                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: It's Manhattan North

         12  and Manhattan South that was involved in the parade.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: So, I'm

         14  sure that the Chiefs from Manhattan North and South

         15  and the Chief of Patrol had a pre-parade meeting,

         16  did they not? To discuss the parade.

         17                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Right.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: So at that

         19  pre-parade meeting, what was discussed specifically

         20  about gang activity and the Department's

         21  intervention at the parade?

         22                 And let me preface it by saying the

         23  following: The organizers of the parade, as I

         24  understand, did not want the Latin Kings to

         25  participate in the parade. I understand their

                                                            115

          1  CIVIL RIGHTS, IMMIGRATION AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  reasons. And there were in the past incidents with

          3  the Latin Kings, so I think the Department's actions

          4  are very relevant and understood, but I'm just

          5  trying to get a little more clarity as to what the

          6  process was that the Department either made or

          7  didn't make a decision for wholesale arrest of gang

          8  members or individuals who had gang colors on?

          9                 So, walk me through the pre-parade

         10  meeting if you can. Specifically just regarding this

         11  issue.

         12                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: But I can't.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: You can't?

         14                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Because I wasn't at

         15  that meeting, so I can't tell you what the

         16  pre-parade meeting was about.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Is anyone

         18  with you today privy to that information, Chief?

         19                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: No.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay. Then

         21  I will not ask any further questions about the

         22  parade, but I would ask the respective chairs of

         23  today's committee to ensure that we do have a

         24  follow-up hearing on this issue and we hear the

         25  responses. I am all for proactive policing that
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          2  keeps the community safe, but we must always balance

          3  the civil rights of everyone, and I look forward to

          4  that hearing.

          5                 Shifting gears, Chief, I want to ask

          6  you specifically a question regarding IDs. I

          7  represent a very high immigrant community, Queens.

          8  And I have received many complaints from local

          9  residents that have been subject to arrests for not

         10  having a New York State ID card. Is it the policy of

         11  the Department that anyone who should be receiving a

         12  summons -- let me walk you through this, so I can

         13  make it very clear, my point.

         14                 Individuals who would be issued a

         15  summons for disorderly conduct or any other type of

         16  summonsable offense cannot receive one unless they

         17  produce valid ID, is that not correct?

         18                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: That's correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: And as I

         20  understand, individuals from Mexico or any other

         21  country who might not have a New York State ID, but

         22  have a consulate metricular (phonetic) card, that

         23  that ID is not acceptable by the NYPD?

         24                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: We don't have an

         25  official policy on what ID is acceptable, what's not
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          2  acceptable. So, if the person has a consulate card

          3  from whatever country they may be in, we don't have

          4  official recognition of cards, nor do we say the

          5  cards are good.

          6                 Usually when an officer is going to

          7  give someone a summons, usually, as you know, it's

          8  in that officer's discretion whether to give the

          9  summons or not, and usually he looks for ID that we

         10  normally would see of New Yorkers, which is a

         11  driver's license, or something to that effect. So,

         12  that's usually what they use. But I don't believe

         13  that there is any policy out there where officers

         14  say, well, you got an ID from a consulate, so,

         15  therefore, that ID is not good at all.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay. So,

         17  then that poses another question; and that is,

         18  because I have confronted this myself in my local

         19  community, two police officers could make a

         20  distinction. One officer might accept a --

         21                 CHIEF ZIEGLER: I'm sorry, what did

         22  you say?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I said

         24  this is my question: As you've testified, there is a

         25  certain amount of discretion that's given to police
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          2  officers to make the decision as to what

          3  identification they will accept. Two police officers

          4  in the same community on the same block can make two

          5  very different decisions under those certain set of

          6  circumstances. In other words, Police Officer A can

          7  accept the consulate card from Mexico, and Police

          8  Officer B might not accept it, which means if you

          9  have the luck of running into Police Officer B today

         10  and you were going to be issued a summons, you could

         11  be actually arrested for a summonsable offense,

         12  because you're not accepting on your own discretion

         13  this Mexican metricular card.

         14                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Well, I think officers

         15  usually use discretion based upon the offense.

         16  That's basically on how egregious the offense is.

         17  That's what they use discretion over.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Let me

         19  give you the scenario that I'm speaking to. Drinking

         20  in public. Urinating in public. Carrying a loud

         21  radio in public. All of these are summonsable

         22  offenses. Now, under those fact patterns, one of

         23  those C summonses are returnable to Criminal Court,

         24  individual officers, depending on the officers, are

         25  determining whether to (a) issue a summons, or (b)
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          2  handcuff and arrest someone for a summonsable

          3  offense. And your testimony today, not yours, but

          4  the Department's testimony, is that that discretion

          5  is given to the individual officers. What I'm saying

          6  is under those fact patterns, individual officers

          7  are making a decision whether to arrest someone,

          8  bring them in, or issue a summons. My concern is

          9  that there should be one set of guidelines and not

         10  as much discretion. That's my concern.

         11                 CHIEF ZIEGLER: Well, I can say that

         12  officers daily make a determination, if they see,

         13  for instance, someone that is playing a radio that's

         14  very loud, they make a determination whether to go

         15  up to that person and say turn the radio down, or

         16  they may make a determination on, well, look, I'm

         17  going to write the summons. That's done daily in and

         18  out. Same thing with someone who may be, as you

         19  said, urinating in public, and all of a sudden could

         20  walk up to the individual and give that person a

         21  summons for urinating in public, or the officer can

         22  say, well, you know, listen, lecture the individual

         23  and tell him to go about his way. That's the type of

         24  discretion that officers use daily. I don't think

         25  that you can come up with one hard iron rule,
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          2  because, I mean we have to give officers some type

          3  of discretion to do their job.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I

          5  understand that, Chief.

          6                 My issue is not the discretion

          7  officers have whether they issue the summons or not.

          8  My issue is, once they've made a determination that

          9  they're going to take an enforcement action, whether

         10  it's issuing a summons or arresting someone because

         11  they don't have ID to prove who they are, which, you

         12  know, we understand that a summons is issued in lieu

         13  of an arrest, our concern from a civil rights

         14  perspective in the immigrant community, many of

         15  which do not have a New York State-sponsored ID

         16  card, that some of them will eventually, and have

         17  been, because a lot of them are my constituents,

         18  have been arrested for summonsable offenses because

         19  they don't have an ID that's acceptable to the

         20  Department. So, what I'm asking is, perhaps, is

         21  there any time in the near future an envisioning of

         22  establishing guidelines as to what ID is acceptable?

         23                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: I really can't say

         24  whether this is something that the Department is

         25  envisioning in the future. I do know that the whole
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          2  issue of what ID is acceptable and what's not

          3  acceptable is an issue that's going to be taken up

          4  by more than just the Police Department. It's

          5  something that City Hall has to deal with and

          6  certainly what the State has to deal with, because

          7  as indicated earlier, this City is multi-cultural.

          8  There's a lot of communities out there, everyone I'm

          9  sure has different IDs from different countries, and

         10  the question of what to accept and what not to

         11  accept is really not a Police Department question,

         12  it's certainly something that other than the Police

         13  Department should be dealing with.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. We'll

         15  finish up with Council Member Mendez.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Chair. Mr. Chairs, I guess.

         18                 I know there's a lot of information

         19  you don't have on the Puerto Rican Day Parade, but I

         20  was going to state some of my questions, which ones

         21  you can answer and the ones that you can't, if you

         22  can get back to this Committee and myself with some

         23  of the answers.

         24                 Of grave concern to me is that of the

         25  200 odd arrests, 113 were for unlawful assembly,
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          2  which is a D misdemeanor, and I wanted to know how

          3  many charges in the past people have been charged

          4  with unlawful assembly, and specifically unlawful

          5  assembly at parades where they're clearly assembling

          6  for a purpose. So, I don't know if you have an

          7  answer to that or you can get me an answer later?

          8                 MR. ZEIGLER: Yes, we'd have to get

          9  you that information later. I don't have that type

         10  of information.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Okay. And the

         12  other question about the parade is, my concern, that

         13  because this has been made an issue about the Latin

         14  Kings, that any arrest that happened that day would

         15  track individuals with an affiliation for being

         16  associated with the gang, just because they were

         17  arrested on that day, and it is clear that many

         18  individuals, unclear how many the numbers are, but

         19  high numbers, were people who were just there at the

         20  parade and ended up getting caught up in a sweep in

         21  the area.

         22                 So, I would like some information

         23  about -- usually when people are arrested with an

         24  affiliation, there are certain charges, and none of

         25  those charges were given to these individuals on the
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          2  day of the Puerto Rican Day Parade. So, I'd like to

          3  know if there is some kind of tracking, if there

          4  would be made an association of affiliation with

          5  gangs just because they were arrested on that day,

          6  and if you could get me that information.

          7                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Okay.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Thank you.

          9                 I wanted to bring up a couple of

         10  issues. One is, in my community recently there was a

         11  big sweep where bicycles, over 100 bicycles were

         12  confiscated from the street. Upon information that I

         13  have received, some were on bicycle racks, most of

         14  them were not. I have an excellent relationship in

         15  my district with that precinct. Usually we would get

         16  notification. The Commanding Officer and I, because

         17  I've been here in the budget, have been playing

         18  phone tag, but it was of concern to me that there

         19  was not more information given to my office, or

         20  other individuals, postings about the clipping of

         21  locks of bicycles on these particular streets.

         22                 So, I just wanted to have some

         23  conversation about dialogue and community relations

         24  between the police, elected officials and other

         25  community organizations where in a case in the
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          2  future that was to happen, that we could sit down so

          3  we could start getting word out that if you're

          4  illegally locking your bike to a tree, that, you

          5  know, it will be confiscated.

          6                 Is there any type of policy in place

          7  about communications with community organizations or

          8  with elected officials on local issues like that?

          9                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Normally the Precinct

         10  Commander gets that information out to the local

         11  officials that there is going to be a big operation

         12  going on. And certainly it's something that he

         13  brings up or she brings up at the Precinct Council

         14  meetings on a monthly basis.

         15                 But I would imagine that if there is

         16  some big operation, normally they notify the local

         17  officials as to what's going to happen in their

         18  community.

         19                 I mean, I'm not particularly sure

         20  what this issue is about, but normally when you have

         21  a big operation, it's imprudent upon the commander

         22  to notify local officials about it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Thank you.

         24                 I just wanted to bring to your

         25  attention that this weekend there was an event in
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          2  the Bronx, Bronx Pride, and I was told by some of my

          3  friends in the Bronx, and from the LGBT community,

          4  that there was a lot of pressure put on by the

          5  police that they had to end their festivities early,

          6  even though they had a permit for the park, and

          7  though they had a permit that ran until 8:00 p.m.,

          8  at about 5:00 and 6:00 they had to wrap up their

          9  activities. So, again, wanted to have some

         10  discussions when there is permits for certain

         11  events, that we can have better coordination in such

         12  events. Because, again, my friends there thought

         13  they were being targeted because they are from the

         14  LGBT community.

         15                 So, I just wanted to ask you, and I

         16  know you address it in your testimony a bit, but

         17  about communicating with individuals in the City who

         18  do not speak English. And if there are officers in

         19  some of the precincts and in some units, to speak

         20  the most commonly spoken language of that community.

         21                 Specifically I also wanted to know

         22  what happens at community precinct meetings when

         23  there is, let's say, 30 percent of the given

         24  community that speak another language, such as

         25  Russian, Spanish, Korean, and if there is someone
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          2  from the police force or the Department, civilian

          3  associated with the Department who would be able to

          4  speak the language of that individual?

          5                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Yes, we normally do

          6  that in all the precincts. We always have officers

          7  -- at least we try to assign officers, I should

          8  say, to different communities based upon the

          9  cultural and language needs of that particular

         10  community.

         11                 That happens all the time, and in

         12  fact, also what we do is, and that's why we've had

         13  the precinct receptionist program, because we look

         14  for individuals who live in the community and we

         15  have them work in the precincts and they assist us

         16  also in any kind of language issues that we may

         17  have. But certainly, this is an issue that we're

         18  well aware of, and I am not familiar with any

         19  meetings where we've had difficulties communicating

         20  with the community, because we take all this into

         21  consideration when we deal with the communities that

         22  we police.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: And what kind

         24  of efforts does the Department make for informing

         25  the community about Community Precinct Council
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          2  Meetings in other languages?

          3                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: What we do is we go

          4  out to some of the local newspapers, and we speak to

          5  the local newspapers and let them know. Because we

          6  know that a lot of times people from a lot of

          7  immigrant communities, they read those local

          8  newspapers, and we put it in the local newspapers.

          9  We also, such as Inspector Borrer, they go on local

         10  radio stations and they talk about the Community

         11  Council meetings, and they encourage people to go

         12  out. So, we try to reach out to some of the

         13  non-profit organizations, in addition, in those

         14  communities, to try to get the information out and

         15  tell them when the meetings are occurring and

         16  hopefully they can.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: In March the

         18  Police Department passed new regulations regarding

         19  parade permits, where you need a permit if you're

         20  going to assembly more than 50 or more individuals.

         21  If 50 or more individuals are assembling and they do

         22  not have a permit, what would be the charges that

         23  would be imposed on those individuals?

         24                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: That's speculative. I

         25  certainly can't respond to that. I really don't know
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          2  if there would be any charges. I can't say. I mean

          3  there was a purpose for a change in the parade

          4  permit procedures, and I don't know if that 50 that

          5  you're talking about would even fit into that

          6  category. So, it's hard to say. I mean, in New York

          7  City so many people are standing on corners. You go

          8  down to Times Square and you can't even get down

          9  through the block, so it's hard to say, just because

         10  you have 50 people standing on the corner, would

         11  they be charged with anything, and I doubt it.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: That was

         13  exactly my point when I spoke about regulations. But

         14  there have been instances where individuals, like in

         15  Council Member Viverito's district, a group of

         16  youths were assembling and going somewhere, I think

         17  to a funeral, if that was correct, and were picked

         18  up by the Police Department, and we believe that was

         19  the regulation that was used to pick them up.

         20                 So, I look forward to discussing more

         21  of this with the Department, and I want to thank the

         22  Chairs for permitting me to ask questions.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         24                 And Inspector Borrer does more than

         25  local radio, apparently he drives Cindy Adams
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          2  around, too. Doing a lot since you left my precinct.

          3                 We have many more follow-ups as

          4  Chairs but we know that you have to actually get out

          5  and do some community policing. So, we're going to

          6  follow-up in writing some of the questions that we

          7  may not have been able to get answers to today. We

          8  look forward to working with you on the many issues

          9  that came up today, and thank you for the work you

         10  guys have been doing with us, along with us, and on

         11  many hearings, I know we keep you busy, and to keep

         12  our community safe.

         13                 Chair Seabrook.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: Thank you very

         15  much, Chief. You certainly have been diligently

         16  listening. One of the things I've said to the Police

         17  Commissioner is that at some point listening is more

         18  important than anything else, and you had the

         19  opportunity to do a lot of listening and to take

         20  back some of this information that people have

         21  talked about constantly and that this problem will

         22  never be solved by just the police, but it has to be

         23  solved by all of us working together. And I

         24  certainly know of your commitment in which you stand

         25  for, and your reputation. I think that once we begin
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          2  to look at all of this and to see, and as Peter and

          3  I met with the Police Commissioner, and we said he

          4  and I would have an agreement, if I would talk and

          5  tell people in the communities about putting guns

          6  away, that he would talk about community

          7  Professionalism, Courtesy and Respect. And I think

          8  if both of us stood together on those terms, and had

          9  a zero tolerance level, my community on guns and his

         10  on that, and I would hope that one of the things

         11  that does so much good work that the Police

         12  Department does but the community doesn't know

         13  about, and I think there has to be these things that

         14  you talked about today, and so there has to be a way

         15  of really bridging that gap so that it doesn't look

         16  like us versus them, but working together, and I

         17  think that there has to be that level of

         18  communication of working together so it's never

         19  that, because the purpose is to service. And, so,

         20  you're doing a good job, and I want to thank you for

         21  being here today.

         22                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Once again,

         24  Chief, I want to thank you for your testimony. But I

         25  have to ask you a final question; and that is, you
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          2  spoke about the language and getting folks who have

          3  mastered the language, has the NYPD considered

          4  paying bonuses to officers with particular language

          5  skills?

          6                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: I don't know if

          7  they've considered that. Anything that you, when you

          8  talk about bonuses, has to go to collective

          9  bargaining, and that's a major issue in itself.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Well, I think

         11  that is something that should be considered because

         12  of the fact of you know what our City is all about

         13  now, with so many different languages. And another

         14  thing, to encourage officers from different ethnic

         15  background to at least work, I think that might be a

         16  ploy to use to give bonuses, based on the fact that

         17  they may be able to speak a different language

         18  within the community in which they serve the police

         19  and the Department.

         20                 Having said that, there is another a

         21  policy question that I wanted to ask; and that is,

         22  in some neighborhoods when there is street cleaning

         23  you are allowed to double park, in others you're

         24  not, and I want to know if there could be a uniform

         25  policy set whereby you don't have folks in one
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          2  neighborhood because the precinct captain there does

          3  not understand the dynamics or may not want to give

          4  that privilege, everyone gets ticketed, whereas in

          5  another community it is a free-bee. So, I want you

          6  to tell me what determines when one can make the

          7  determination to have double parking, which we know

          8  is illegal but grant that discretion; when can that

          9  happen?

         10                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: We made this issue up

         11  to local precinct commanders. This is not something

         12  that we deal with. But usually the local precinct

         13  commanders, they make their decisions based upon a

         14  public safety issue, and certainly you just can't

         15  come out with a blanket statement saying that when

         16  there is street cleaning you can double park,

         17  because some streets are smaller than others. The

         18  Fire Department has to get through, you have trucks

         19  double parking there, and we'll have a real major

         20  problem. So, that's why we leave it to the local

         21  commanders to make that decision. And usually the

         22  local officers, politicians and also community

         23  members, they work with the precinct commanders to

         24  resolve issues like this, and that's why we have

         25  that Precinct Community Council meeting on a monthly
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          2  basis, so that issues such as this can be brought

          3  out and resolved.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: But, sir, in

          5  some precincts there's a good dialogue, and the

          6  streets, their dynamics might be the same, but in

          7  one precinct you're allowed to double park, in the

          8  other precinct you're not. So, all I'm trying to

          9  find out is if there could be some better dialogue

         10  so if the community board and that precinct captain

         11  doesn't see it the same way, they may not grant that

         12  permission, and that's a discretion that they use.

         13  So, what I'm saying is basically in one precinct it

         14  might be the same within the street, the same

         15  dynamics, but they're allowed to double park and

         16  they don't get tickets. Whereas, in another precinct

         17  you ask and they say, well, double parking is

         18  illegal and that's it. No clear explanation. And

         19  that's what I'm trying to get at, whether there

         20  could be some better guidelines set aside to deal

         21  with that.

         22                 Having said that, I want to thank you

         23  again. I want to thank you again. I don't know if

         24  we're going to do another follow-up, but the fact is

         25  you have been great and I want to thank you guys for
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          2  all of your information. I might be asking someone

          3  from your, what do you call it?  The Immigrant

          4  Outreach Unit to come out in my district to

          5  follow-up on some of these areas, all right? Thank

          6  you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I think we

          8  learned today that community policing is a very

          9  broad topic. It went from My Space to double

         10  parking, to parades, you name it, but we will be

         11  more specific in the future. Again, we have another

         12  panel coming up, so thank you all very much. We look

         13  forward to working with you.

         14                 CHIEF ZEIGLER: Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: The next panel

         16  will consist of Anita Khashu, from Vera Institute of

         17  Justice and Ivana Chapcakova, of New York City Gay

         18  and Lesbian Anti-Violence Project.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: We've got to

         20  get started because we're running kind of late here.

         21  We're using up somebody else's time. Okay, we're

         22  going to have the next panel on so you can kind of

         23  start. We're sorry about the delay, I know had good

         24  morning, but it's good afternoon. So, we apologize,

         25  but try to sum up a little bit if you can, at your
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          2  discretion.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Anita, we do

          4  have your rather voluminous testimony, so feel free

          5  to sum it up.

          6                 MS. KHASHU: Just sum it up, okay.

          7                 All right. Well, let me just

          8  introduce myself very quickly. My name is Anita

          9  Khashu, and I'm with the Vera Institute of Justice.

         10  I'm the Director of the Center on Immigration and

         11  Justice, and I have my colleague Susan Shaw with me,

         12  who manages our police immigrant relations work, so

         13  that in the event that you have questions, she'll be

         14  able to answer as well.

         15                 And I'm going to focus my testimony

         16  on the immigrant community. Every day immigrants

         17  silently face a variety of plights alone. Though

         18  their tribulations might be front page news in the

         19  mainstream community, many immigrants go to great

         20  lengths to stay invisible. Why might this be?

         21                 I'm going to give you a couple of

         22  examples from community dialogue hosted at Vera to

         23  explain why that might be. A Nigerian political

         24  refugee explained that even though he had greater

         25  faith in the police in New York City than in
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          2  Nigeria, for a couple of years after he lived in

          3  this country he began to shake uncontrollably

          4  whenever he saw a police officer in uniform.

          5                 Another community organizer working

          6  with Muslim communities in New York reported that a

          7  victim of stabbing that required 34 stitches across

          8  his chest refused to report the crime for fear of

          9  being deported. So, my goal in this presentation is

         10  to explain why there are these barriers to effective

         11  policing in new immigrant communities and order some

         12  solutions.

         13                 I'm going to begin by framing the

         14  discussion in terms of talking about community

         15  policing within the context of immigrant

         16  communities, and I want to highlight some positive

         17  steps NYPD has taken to build strong relationships

         18  and share some good practices and recommendations

         19  that we at Vera have learned from our national work

         20  in this area.

         21                 Just quickly, Vera's history in

         22  policing so you have a frame with which to ask us

         23  questions, we started in 1964 working on the

         24  Manhattan summons project which was the creation of

         25  a desk appearance ticket, or a summons that you
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          2  heard about earlier today.

          3                 Since that collaboration we worked on

          4  various issues, I think most relevant to this panel

          5  is the CPOP Program, the Community Patrol Officer

          6  Program, it was something we developed during the

          7  Dinkins Administration. It still exists in some form

          8  today, but it is quite different than its initial

          9  design. In the beginning it had ten officers

         10  assigned as community patrol officers, and they work

         11  to get to know the neighborhood residents and

         12  merchants and help them identify and eliminate

         13  conditions that bred crime and the fear of crime,

         14  but they weren't only liaisons to the community but

         15  they actually did do law enforcement investigative

         16  work as well.

         17                 We also, in 2001 developed a

         18  Community Satisfaction Survey of neighborhood

         19  residents. It eventually was expanded to 76

         20  precincts. The original design of the program used

         21  to be a part of Compstat, but then there was a

         22  change in leadership and the program ended. But it

         23  was a comprehensive survey of neighborhood

         24  satisfaction for the entire City.

         25                 Then Vera worked on, decided to
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          2  expand the focus of our police community relations

          3  work to immigrant communities; (1) because of the

          4  changing demographics of New York, (2) because of

          5  9/11 and some of the fears, intensified fears of

          6  police and law enforcement that we were learning

          7  about post-9/11. And in response we did a series of

          8  community police forums over the course of the year

          9  with what we called new emerging immigrant

         10  communities, we worked with the Arab community, we

         11  worked with newer Latin American communities from

         12  Colombia, Central America, Mexico, we also work with

         13  continental African communities, and we did a series

         14  of forums for publication, that if you'd like to

         15  see, I'd be happy to provide you the copy. And we

         16  also, at the same time a lot of our recommendations

         17  come out of a series of workshops we did with the

         18  New Jersey Institute for Social Justice and

         19  Princeton University, bringing together leaders of

         20  the New Jersey, New York and Pennsylvania. Within

         21  police agencies, we had many police chiefs there, we

         22  had police executives there, we had community

         23  leaders and we had academics.

         24                 And so through those series of forums

         25  we came up with a series of recommendations, which
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          2  I'll talk about later.

          3                 So, what is community policing? It's

          4  a term that is often thrown around and used

          5  interchangeably with community outreach. However,

          6  community policing is more than community outreach,

          7  it requires police and community members to join

          8  together as partners to both identify and address

          9  local issues. Mere public relations campaigns

         10  targeted towards immigrant communities are not

         11  sufficient, although they could be part of a larger

         12  community policing strategy.

         13                 Community policing represents a shift

         14  from more traditional law enforcement, that it

         15  focuses on crime prevention at the local level. By

         16  earning the trust of local community members, police

         17  can help communities see that they are stakeholders

         18  in their own safety, and community ownership of

         19  local problems is an effective strategy for keeping

         20  our streets safe.

         21                 Community policing is not easy in any

         22  community, but in particular, Police Departments

         23  throughout the country have faced challenges in

         24  implementing community policing programs in

         25  immigrant communities.
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          2                 The Chicago Community Policing

          3  Program is one of the most well known and big

          4  community policing programs in the country, and they

          5  also have one of the few sort of comprehensive

          6  evaluations of that program. And the researchers who

          7  did that evaluation looked at the impact in

          8  immigrant communities, particularly the

          9  Spanish-speaking Latino community, and the program

         10  just wasn't that successful. While it was very

         11  successful in the African-American communities, it

         12  was not so successful with immigrant communities. So

         13  why is that? What are the causes of low

         14  participation rates in community policing programs

         15  in immigrant communities?

         16                 Well, some you probably know of.

         17  First, many immigrants come from countries with

         18  corrupt, repressive and violent police forces and

         19  criminal justice systems. They bring these

         20  expectations from their countries of origin that

         21  police are corrupt and abusive and they fear

         22  government officials. But these fears can also be

         23  exacerbated by news stories, political flashpoints

         24  in local immigrant communities.

         25                 Now, fear of deportation and
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          2  detention may also lead immigrants to avoid contact

          3  with the police and other municipal service

          4  agencies. They may not report crimes because they

          5  are afraid their or their family members'

          6  immigration status will be reported to immigration

          7  officials.

          8                 And this is very, very important.

          9  Today I think that in all communities, particularly

         10  Arab and Muslim, but in all communities the fear of

         11  immigration enforcement these days is really extreme

         12  and a real barrier to effective community policing

         13  in these communities.

         14                 Further, under-reporting of crime

         15  means that immigrant neighborhoods may often be

         16  unrepresented when police allocate resources, so

         17  it's another important consideration.

         18                 Finally, language barriers often

         19  prevent effective communication between immigrants

         20  and the police. This is particularly a challenge in

         21  New York City where a quarter of the City is limited

         22  English proficient.

         23                 As I mentioned before, language

         24  barriers can severely impair vital communications

         25  for police in immigrant communities, and Council

                                                            142

          1  CIVIL RIGHTS, IMMIGRATION AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  Member Mendez did mention that as well.

          3                 So, in sum, cultural misperception

          4  about police abusiveness and corruption, post-9/11

          5  fears of immigration enforcement by the police, and

          6  language barriers are all significant challenges for

          7  achieving high levels of participation with

          8  community policing initiatives in immigrant

          9  communities.

         10                 So, I want to just turn to some of

         11  the positive initiatives by NYPD. You know, they did

         12  talk about the New Immigrant Outreach Unit. Just so

         13  you know, when we first started working with them,

         14  there were four immigrant liaisons under Chief

         15  Zeigler's leadership, there are now 20. We think

         16  that shows a lot of improvement.

         17                 Also, there is also sort of a new

         18  focus not just on traditional well-established

         19  immigrant communities, but new, emerging immigrant

         20  communities, who are most in need of extra outreach

         21  and trust-building exercises.

         22                 Also, there has been an effort to

         23  diversify the police force. I believe in the last

         24  police recruit class there were people representing

         25  50 nations from the world which is phenomenal
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          2  really.

          3                 Also, another innovative project that

          4  we've seen is, they have this voluntary language

          5  bank of both civilian and sworn employees that speak

          6  languages other than English, and unlike other

          7  volunteer language banks that we've heard of in the

          8  City or around the nation, they actually test, they

          9  have Berlitz test the officers who are put into this

         10  language bank.

         11                 Now, unfortunately, our knowledge

         12  with their -- we haven't been working as close with

         13  NYPD within the last couple of years, so my

         14  knowledge is a little dated, I just want to qualify.

         15  But a few years ago when we were looking into this

         16  issue, two years ago, I would say, while it was

         17  amazing to have this volunteer database, we didn't

         18  actually see it being used very much. It was rarely

         19  used. Mostly for counter-terrorism, it was lent out

         20  to the Department of Defense at times, but not on a

         21  regular basis, but a good practice.

         22                 Also, most of our work recently is

         23  national, so I'm just going to quickly list some of

         24  the things I think that are interesting that are

         25  being done nationally. One is ongoing community
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          2  forums and dialogues, like we did with the Police

          3  Department years ago. Special liaisons, like they

          4  have in the Immigrant Outreach Unit. We've done a

          5  lot of work with Las Vegas MPD, and since it's a

          6  very large city, very diverse like New York and also

          7  has big city crime problems, we thought it would be

          8  good to give you some of the things they're doing.

          9                 One is something called a Hispanic

         10  area resourcing. Basically it's sort of similar to

         11  our initial community policing program we did under

         12  the Dinkins Administration, and it was -- these

         13  Hispanic liaisons aren't only doing community

         14  affairs work, but they do investigations.

         15                 The one complaint about the program

         16  is that they are so busy, these officers, they are

         17  pulled in constantly into big, long-term

         18  investigative work, because they're the ones who

         19  have the community ties. We know them in the

         20  community. Community members told me they call these

         21  liaisons on their cell phones to get help, and it's

         22  been a very effective program, it's just not big

         23  enough, and they are, I believe, thinking about

         24  expanding that program. So, that's one.

         25                 Another is, they have recruitment
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          2  councils, a Hispanic and an Asian Recruitment

          3  Council, that works with the Police Department to

          4  help recruit members of their communities to serve

          5  on the police force.

          6                 We obviously believe that

          7  diversifying the police force is one of the best

          8  practices in improving community policing in

          9  immigrant communities.

         10                 Other things that might be

         11  interesting is there are storefront substations.

         12  Dallas PD does that, where the police set up a

         13  satellite substation in the middle of a big

         14  immigrant community or shopping complex to be more

         15  accessible to community members.

         16                 As far as the language barriers go, a

         17  good practice we believe is to have a language

         18  access policy or protocol so that officers are aware

         19  of what to do when they encounter a limited English

         20  proficient person. Testing, certifying and

         21  compensating bilingual staff. Civilian interpreter

         22  programs. Again, Las Vegas MPD has a phenomenal

         23  program where they have paid Spanish interpreters

         24  that have radios and cars and can be deployed as

         25  quickly as a patrol officer to the scene of an
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          2  incident where translation is needed. Use of

          3  telephonic interpreters technology, interpreter

          4  training for bilingual staff. It's very difficult to

          5  interpret. It's not an easy skill. So we think

          6  that's important. And obviously, translation of

          7  forms and community outreach materials.

          8                 And then to close, like I said, I was

          9  going to tell you that we had 200 leaders who came

         10  together over the course of a year to come up with

         11  strategies for improving police immigrant relations.

         12  I would just like to list off the strategies we came

         13  up with. There were representation from New York

         14  City there. It's relevant. One was that law

         15  enforcement should strive to create partnerships

         16  with social service-based and other community

         17  organizations to help officers reach community

         18  members they would otherwise not, and to help

         19  community members feel safe. I think that this

         20  Immersion program is a good step towards that,

         21  actually. I think it's a wonderful idea for a

         22  program.

         23                 Law enforcement should work with

         24  immigrant community members to develop strategies to

         25  build trust among segments of the immigrant
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          2  communities that face special challenges, such as

          3  young immigrants, children of immigrants and day

          4  laborers.

          5                 Law enforcement should establish and

          6  publicize policies on immigration enforcements and

          7  officers should have training on this.

          8                 The Police Department should make

          9  interpreters and police forms available in multiple

         10  languages and test and retest language proficiency

         11  of officers.

         12                 Police Department should partner with

         13  immigrant community members to develop continued

         14  cultural training for law enforcement, with

         15  different types of training for new and senior

         16  officers.

         17                 And finally, law enforcement should

         18  assume responsibility for sustaining the

         19  relationship-building efforts since police must

         20  compete for the time of immigrant community members

         21  with families, jobs and other civic and community

         22  commitments.

         23                 I give you these recommendations

         24  because I don't want it to just be Anita Khashu,

         25  Director of the Center for Immigration and Justice
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          2  tells you what should be done, but this is a group

          3  of 200 community leaders, police leaders and

          4  academics. So, if you have any questions, we'd be

          5  happy to answer them. Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: Thank you very

          7  much. A couple of questions that I have. One is that

          8  Councilman Monserrate raised the issue about IDs and

          9  the stops; do you have any comments on that? There

         10  wasn't clarity as to what.

         11                 MS. KHASHU: Yes. I believe that in

         12  our community forum that issue did come up with the

         13  Latino community, in particular with the Mexican

         14  community and whether or not they could use

         15  consulate IDs. At that moment, I don't know what the

         16  current policy is, but at that moment there was a

         17  sense that they, the City did not want to accept

         18  that at that time. I don't really have any further

         19  information, except that in places where they do

         20  accept metricular consulate IDs, it does seem to

         21  help, it's not only about if you're stopped, I think

         22  it's also to be able to even file a complaint you

         23  need some kind of ID. So, to encourage people to

         24  report crimes I think that would be helpful.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: And lastly, you
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          2  raised the issue, when you were talking about the

          3  CPOP program community policing --

          4                 MS. KHASHU: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: And as it

          6  relates to not having that; what evaluations or

          7  recommendations based upon your analysis and what

          8  you all looked at?

          9                 MS. KHASHU: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: And saw.

         11                 MS. KHASHU: Well, I think it was an

         12  old program, it was in the middle of the crack

         13  epidemic that program ran, and so a very difficult

         14  time to do that. But our program did show some

         15  increased reporting and positive outcomes. But

         16  that's why I mentioned this Las Vegas program,

         17  because it's much more current, and it's much more,

         18  in response to today's challenges I think. And we do

         19  believe that that program is similar in the sense

         20  that, I think the main point is having people who,

         21  not separating completely out the function of public

         22  outreach and investigation, and the idea that the

         23  people who really get to know the communities can be

         24  really the most effective when it comes to

         25  investigations, particularly I'm not talking about
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          2  small incidents here and there, but long-term

          3  criminal investigations, they can be very effective.

          4  And what we've seen in Las Vegas is that the only

          5  complaint about the program is these officers are

          6  completely tapped, as far as they don't have time to

          7  do everything they're called upon.

          8                 And, so, I guess I'd rather not

          9  necessarily base my whole opinion on this issue on a

         10  21-year-old program that Vera actually has some

         11  investment in, because we developed it, but rather

         12  this Las Vegas program, which is very focused, and

         13  very responsive to today, which is this huge new, I

         14  mean they are seeing a huge influx of immigrant

         15  communities. They've had Hispanic communities

         16  forever, but like New York, we've had immigrant

         17  communities forever, but it's just been an

         18  incredible increase, and Las Vegas has seen that in

         19  particular because the prosperity the city is

         20  facing, so it's attracting workers from all over the

         21  world.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Now we still

         25  need to hear from Ivana Chapcakova, right? I have
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          2  one other invited guest, if I could ask Lilithe

          3  Lozano to join the panel, and you'll be next.

          4  Thanks.

          5                 Sorry, Anita.

          6                 MS. KHASHU: No problem.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: I'm sorry,

          8  Ivana.

          9                 MS. CHAPCAKOVA: Good afternoon,

         10  ladies and gentlemen. My name is Ivana Chapcakova. I

         11  am here representing the New York City Gay and

         12  Lesbian Anti-Violence Project.

         13                 Since its inception in 1980, the

         14  Anti-Violence Project has worked to end police

         15  misconduct and improve police response towards

         16  lesbian, gay, transgender, bisexual and HIV-affected

         17  crime victims, and to improve the relationship

         18  between police and LGTBH New Yorkers.

         19                 Through ongoing dialogues with

         20  various NYPD units, case consultations and

         21  discussions regarding policies and protocols, and

         22  regular training programs for law enforcement on how

         23  to work with LGTBH crime victims, we have narrowed

         24  the gap between LGTBH communities in New York and

         25  the Police Department, and have also achieved a
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          2  better and more professional response towards our

          3  clients and our community.

          4                 Today we have a very strong and

          5  effective relationship with the Hate Crime Task

          6  Force, and have access to the Police Department

          7  through our linkage with the LGBT Liaison and

          8  Community Affairs Bureau. Despite thee improvements,

          9  police misconduct, including verbal and physical

         10  abuse by the police, refusal to assist LGTBH crime

         11  victims, and unequal and selective application of

         12  the law, remains a major concern in our community.

         13  Many victims in the LGTBH community have been

         14  affected by police misconduct or have been

         15  re-victimized by the very individuals, agencies and

         16  institutions designed to protect and defend the most

         17  vulnerable among us.

         18                 It is still too frequent an

         19  occurrence that LGTB hate crime victims do not

         20  report bias incidents to law enforcement because of

         21  fear of bias attitude from and revictimization by

         22  the police. Last year, AVP documented over 20

         23  reports of incidents of verbal and physical abuse by

         24  police against LGTB hate crime victims. Police

         25  refused to take the complaint and assist victims of
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          2  anti-LGTB hate crimes, at least 33 instances. There

          3  was also 118 percent increase in 2006 in reported

          4  incidents that were refused hate crime

          5  classification by police.

          6                 In cases of domestic violence, police

          7  officers are refusing to take Domestic Incident

          8  Reports, are failing to arrest offenders, and are

          9  inappropriately referring LGTB domestic violence

         10  victims to Family Court when protections through

         11  Family Court are not available to same-sex couples,

         12  or unmarried heterosexual couples without children

         13  in common for that matter.

         14                 Like people of color and immigrant

         15  communities, lives of LGTBH people in this City are

         16  disproportionately affected by the police

         17  misconduct. To that end, we believe that NYPD needs

         18  to do more to respond to concerns of communities

         19  disproportionately affected by police misconduct,

         20  actively engaging in dialogues with those

         21  communities and their representatives, and

         22  implementing their knowledge and expertise to

         23  educate and assist its members in understanding and

         24  responding appropriately to city's diverse

         25  populations.
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          2                 In summary, we support every effort

          3  the City Council will make towards ensuring the

          4  accessibility of the criminal justice system for all

          5  communities, including LGTBH victims of crime, so

          6  that anyone in need of assistance, regardless of who

          7  they are, will be treated with the utmost respect,

          8  dignity, sensitivity and professionalism. Thank you

          9  for the opportunity to present this information.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         11                 Ms. Lozano.

         12                 MS. LOZANO: Good afternoon. I'm the

         13  President of Police Service Area 8, which covers

         14  approximately 23 Housing Developments. I have lost

         15  four of those developments to the local precincts

         16  for the last three years. I think community policing

         17  is crucial. I was glad to hear that the Chief said

         18  that they were going to start lending their hand to

         19  the new officers that are in place, because they

         20  come into our communities and they don't know the

         21  community, and a lot of the complaints that I hear

         22  overall is that they're a little aggressive. They're

         23  not community-oriented. So, we think that it is

         24  crucial that they start promoting this new

         25  initiative and extending that to the officers.
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          2                 My frustration these several years

          3  has been that because I've lost those four

          4  developments, I think, and I have tirelessly

          5  expressed it, the local precincts are not as

          6  community oriented as the PSAs. And I think that

          7  eventually our residents are really concerned with

          8  the fact that they may phase PSAs all together out

          9  and we'll have to deal with the local precincts.

         10                 They do try to work with the

         11  community. I can only speak about the 49th Precinct,

         12  which is located in the Bronx. They try, but the

         13  reality is, is that there is still this

         14  stereotypical mentality about residents in public

         15  housing, and I think it disheartens the community. A

         16  lot of our youth, they can't even stay in front of

         17  our buildings because they constantly are being

         18  harassed. And, you know, where are our children

         19  going to go? There is no after school programs,

         20  there is nothing for them to do, and you know,

         21  community centers don't stay open late. So, what are

         22  they, you know, they come into our communities, the

         23  rookie officers, and you know, without probable

         24  cause, they kind of cause a little bit of problems

         25  with our youth. In my police council meetings, I get
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          2  it all the time with officers being very aggressive

          3  unnecessarily. When I was at the Puerto Rican

          4  Parade, I went up to an officer myself and I had

          5  asked him a question and he was very, very, you

          6  know, very confrontational, and I had to tell him, I

          7  said, you know, if you're doing it to me, God knows

          8  how many people and then you wonder why the

          9  community is always in an uproar and very

         10  aggressive, and they're mad, they don't want to be

         11  bothered and they're afraid. We shouldn't have to be

         12  afraid of our officers, they're supposed to protect

         13  and serve and they're our public servants, but it

         14  doesn't happen. I just want to be given the

         15  opportunity to come before you, each and every one

         16  of you, and let you know that our Housing residents,

         17  we really want to continue to have our PSAs. My

         18  council, it doesn't even cover my area, and the

         19  reason why I continue to be president is because I

         20  feel that it's crucial that we keep letting our

         21  elected officials, as well as the commands know,

         22  that not all of us are from housing developments are

         23  uneducated, and they, you know, they come from the

         24  lowest of the lowest. I really think that even

         25  though the police, the local precincts, the whole
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          2  NYPD gets the same training, the reality is is that

          3  the PSAs are more community minded, more empathetic

          4  than our local precincts, and I think something

          5  needs to be done about that.

          6                 As far as our programs, I think that

          7  they should do more extensive outreach. A lot of our

          8  children, a lot of parents, a lot of residents don't

          9  even know that there's several programs that the

         10  NYPD offers, like the Police Academy, you know, the

         11  Explorers Program. You know, there are so many, you

         12  know, it has to come hand-in-hand. In the seventies

         13  when Dinkins was in place, they had the cop on the

         14  beat. You knew your officer. It is crucial and I

         15  just want to, you know, to make sure that it doesn't

         16  fall on deaf ears, and that we can, under no

         17  circumstances, allow our Police Service Areas be

         18  phased out. Because the precincts cannot handle it,

         19  and I'm dealing with it as we speak. I've been on

         20  the quest for four years, and I've spoken to Chief

         21  Jaffe, I've spoken to anyone from any high ranking

         22  in the NYPD to let them know that the problems lie

         23  within more community outreach, and these officers

         24  from other communities, they need to understand that

         25  they're not in the city, not all our children are
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          2  thugs. They just don't have anything to do. You

          3  know, so just in closing, I just want to let you

          4  know that I am honored for the opportunity to come

          5  before you and speak about about a community person.

          6  I've been in the community for 17 years, and I'm on

          7  the community board, I've done a lot. So, I

          8  understand communities. I'm also very police

          9  friendly. When I did have the opportunity to go to

         10  the City, the Citizens Police Academy, it gave me an

         11  overview of what officers are like, I think they

         12  should offer that more to communities of color,

         13  because this way they get a bigger picture of what

         14  they deal with on a day-to-day basis. The community

         15  doesn't know, they're not going to respond. Thank

         16  you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: Thank you very

         18  much. I think that you were at one of the forums

         19  that we had with the Speaker.

         20                 MS. LOZANO: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: And one of the

         22  things that we didn't get to Chief Zeigler about was

         23  that whole issue of public housing, because I think

         24  the Speaker wanted to focus just the hearing about

         25  that issue, because, you know, as we went around the
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          2  City, and we started in the Bronx, because you were

          3  at that meeting as well, that was a real concern.

          4  So, we're going to have a separate hearing with the

          5  focus around public housing and its relationships

          6  because it is a problem, and the socialization that

          7  needs to take place with police officers, as it

          8  relates to public housing on that issue. So, I hear

          9  you loud and clear.

         10                 MS. LOZANO: I really appreciate it. I

         11  really would like to encourage that they do more

         12  reach out because the residents, a lot of my

         13  members, they don't know when you have Council

         14  meetings and hearings. You have no idea, and I'm

         15  sure as a Council Member from the Bronx you hear

         16  that all the time, but I'm glad that I was given

         17  this opportunity.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: Well, I think,

         19  again, because people have made such separation in

         20  the statements, that they don't include people

         21  involvement with the community councils from Public

         22  Housing.

         23                 As you know, I think when I got

         24  elected it was the first time they had people from

         25  the Housing Project on the community board. They
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          2  thought they weren't a part of the community, so

          3  they never put them on the community board.

          4                 MS. LOZANO: And it happens, I go to

          5  the Police Council Meetings, the local Police

          6  Council Meetings, and you have no idea, a lot of the

          7  residents don't attend. It takes more than just two

          8  seconds to explain what your concerns are. So, we

          9  really need to have our Police Councils and PSAs

         10  more, not to be phased out.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: No, we hear you

         12  loud and clear.

         13                 MS. LOZANO: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: The Speaker

         15  heard you before when she was there, so we're going

         16  to deal with that, and certainly thank you for

         17  coming.

         18                 MS. LOZANO: Thank you for having me.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: I have a

         20  question. What is your opinion of the current state

         21  of police immigrant relations in New York City?

         22                 MS. LOZANO: Is that for me?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Or anybody on

         24  the panel?

         25                 MS. KHASHU: Okay, my sense of the
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          2  state of police immigrant relations today is

          3  certainly, it's pretty tense, and I think that,

          4  quite frankly, that the fears of deportation are

          5  probably a large contributor of that fear and that

          6  tension. I think people are much more scared today

          7  than they were five, ten years ago of being

          8  deported, of having involvement of officials of the

          9  government. I know we have an executive order out

         10  there, but to understand, I think it takes in a

         11  little understanding of the way in which social

         12  networks in immigrant communities work. One thing

         13  happens to one family, you know, in a community, and

         14  that story can spread like wildfire. So, I heard in

         15  our community forums that, you know, we'll hear

         16  incidents like, yeah, but I heard this family, you

         17  know, this family called FDNY to report a fire, and

         18  as a result got deported. Now, we have no idea what

         19  happened in that incident. I'm not suggesting

         20  necessarily, but I really doubt that FDNY actually

         21  reported this person to INS. I don't know what

         22  happened in those incidences. But I do know that the

         23  fear of deportation is very extreme, and when

         24  anybody gets deported, and, you know, it's right

         25  after some incident, it's going to have really
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          2  negative consequences.

          3                 I also think that the Executive Order

          4  doesn't cover, you know, there are big loopholes in

          5  it, especially when it comes to law enforcement, and

          6  so as a result, you know, while I don't think NYPD

          7  affirmatively goes after immigration enforcement, I

          8  really don't, but I do think that it does happen

          9  that there is a traffic stop or some sort and then

         10  NCIC check is done, which is the federal criminal

         11  database, which now the Department of Justice is

         12  including civil immigration and violations in this

         13  database, and as a result someone might be getting

         14  deported.

         15                 So, I really, I think just

         16  nationally, people read papers and see what's going

         17  on, there are raids going on, all that. So, while I

         18  don't contribute this all to NYPD, the fault of

         19  this, I think we're in the times right now where

         20  immigrants are really going further and further into

         21  the shadows and fearing more and more government.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Any suggestion

         23  as to how we can maybe not relieve that problem, but

         24  at least so we can make it easier for some of these

         25  folks? Any suggestion that you have in mind?
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          2                 MS. KHASHU: I do believe that getting

          3  to know communities, immigrant communities, I think

          4  it takes a lot of work but I think it is totally

          5  worth it. I think that, you know, it's really the

          6  same thing that she said about getting to know

          7  people in Housing Projects. I do believe that

          8  ongoing communication, two-way communication that

          9  doesn't appear to be just about public relations. It

         10  has to appear genuine. It has to appear to be

         11  two-way. It has to appear that the Police Department

         12  is listening and taking in the feedback. I think it

         13  has to be done regularly. I do believe in the beat

         14  officer, as well. I think that that helps when

         15  people do know they're a cop, and I think through

         16  time that would help eliminate the fears.

         17                 I also think real clarification about

         18  what the policy is, that is a result of Executive

         19  Order 41, what is the policy on immigration

         20  enforcement, communicating that, and also when it is

         21  violated, because all rules are, you know, you've

         22  got 40,000 police officers in New York City, you

         23  have more than most militaries, and you're going to

         24  have in any large organization like that, someone is

         25  going to break a rule here and there. So, what are
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          2  the consequences of breaking that rule? Asking an

          3  immigrant about their status, and what is the

          4  follow-up after that?

          5                 So, I feel like to sum up, it has to

          6  be real outreach. It has to be that you really do

          7  want to hear input from community members, it has to

          8  be sustained, and it has to be sort of a long-term

          9  investment.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: I agree with

         11  you, but I still have this notion in me that as you

         12  try to reach out to folks, they put up a road block

         13  because of that fear. Reaching out to someone which

         14  will then help community relations in all of that,

         15  is exposing that one, in terms of eventually their

         16  status and all those things will be exposed. The

         17  questions will be asked indirectly in many ways.

         18                 MS. KHASHU: That's a great point.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: I'm not so sure

         20  how to get around that fact, in terms of

         21  communication.

         22                 MS. LOZANO: I think usually when

         23  there is a forum in place, if they can identify with

         24  the same type of counterparts and you have

         25  organizations, several organizations that may be
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          2  collective, collaboratively they can work with the

          3  community and NYPD with their Community Affairs

          4  Officers, even though our Community Affairs Officers

          5  are just multi-tasking because they're doing

          6  everything at once. That's another problem. You

          7  know, the morale is really low with the NYPD because

          8  the precincts are long overdue for upgrades. You

          9  can't work effectively as an officer if you don't

         10  have the resources.

         11                 So, I think that maybe there will be

         12  some way in identifying organizations that can work

         13  collectively with the NYPD, with the community and

         14  then they will probably feel a little more

         15  comfortable. Sometimes in your surroundings you feel

         16  comfortable if they can see another face that

         17  identifies them. And it works. It works. I've seen

         18  it. I've done it myself on several venues. It does

         19  work. It just takes a little more effort, and, you

         20  know, you've got to just keep on doing it, I guess.

         21                 MS. KHASHU: Also, if I could just

         22  add, with respect to the immigrant communities, I do

         23  think there needs to be more of a public dialogue

         24  about this immigration enforcement question, and I

         25  do think that would be very helpful, more clarity
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          2  about what the policy is, more clarity about what

          3  the consequences are for violating that policy, and

          4  a public dialogue about it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: But who should

          6  be doing it? We could talk about it, but if the

          7  police don't believe in it, it means then it makes

          8  not much sense.

          9                 MS. KHASHU: Yes, I agree with that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: As far as

         11  Executive Order 41 is concerned, if the police is

         12  not promoting it and they're not talking about it,

         13  they may talk about it among themselves, but when

         14  they go out and try to do their job, if they don't

         15  show a sign, if they don't restrain from asking

         16  immigration questions, it means it doesn't make

         17  sense. Because there isn't much we can do as far as

         18  local concern, if they violate that order.

         19                 MS. KHASHU: Right.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: The other thing

         21  that I wanted to ask you is that language, there

         22  seems to be, based on language there seems to be

         23  some form of profiling. Because if someone is not a

         24  clear speaker of English, they tend to feel that

         25  they are undocumented, and which may not be the

                                                            167

          1  CIVIL RIGHTS, IMMIGRATION AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  case. We have seen folks who have been questioned

          3  and been challenged as to their status, just because

          4  they do not speak English. So, I am not too sure the

          5  Executive Order is really doing anything as to

          6  prevent folks from being, going through the

          7  challenge of INS picking them up, or Homeland

          8  Security picking them up, or they go through that IS

          9  program, whatever it is.

         10                 The fact is, the language is one that

         11  I feel that the Police Department is using to

         12  profile a lot of folks who might be, may or may not

         13  be undocumented.

         14                 Do you have a comment?

         15                 MS. KHASHU: No, I think that's

         16  possible but they're not supposed to be doing

         17  immigration enforcement, so that should not -- I

         18  mean, it might be happening, and you would know

         19  better from your own constituencies, but I don't

         20  disagree at all with what you're saying. I think

         21  they have to really believe in the policy, they have

         22  to really believe in community outreach, they have

         23  to really believe -- they have to be serious about

         24  when people violate it, what the consequences are. I

         25  don't disagree with that, but I just feel like I
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          2  could see how language barriers, it is happening.

          3  There is just a case, actually just a really quick

          4  case, I don't know if anyone has read about it in

          5  Los Angeles with a Hispanic detainee in the Los

          6  Angeles County Sheriff's facility who was born in

          7  the United States but was mentally incapacitated, is

          8  mentally retarded, I believe, and he was deported to

          9  Mexico, even though he was born in the United

         10  States, through this immigration enforcement work

         11  that's going on in the jails, and he is mentally

         12  ill, and their family cannot find him. He was

         13  literally taken from the jail to Mexico. And the

         14  family cannot find this person anywhere in Mexico

         15  right now. It's a terrible story, but it's why we

         16  think that local officials shouldn't get involved in

         17  immigration enforcement, and it just enforces what

         18  you're saying. I'm not sure if he spoke English or

         19  not, but it might have been that situation.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Well, I have

         21  heard of a similar case that someone was deported to

         22  Guyana, thinking that he was born in Guyana. But

         23  actually he was born here but went back to Guyana

         24  when he was a child, and lived there and came back.

         25  You know, I'm not too sure that's the problem
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          2  because of the police. The fact is, IS might be

          3  there just seeking as they picked him up for an

          4  incident or something, and I'm not too sure we're at

          5  a level where we can do much, and I thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: Just a question

          7  because I was listening to your testimony. As it

          8  relates to the lack of reporting that police are

          9  making, and you raise the issue about the domestic

         10  violence and also the hate crime, and you kind of

         11  said some numbers. What's the rationale and what

         12  procedures have you all taken in terms of dealing

         13  with that? That's a question that we didn't get a

         14  chance to ask the police, and I'd certainly like to

         15  do a follow-up with that, after hearing your

         16  testimony.

         17                 MS. CHAPCAKOVA: Certainly it's an

         18  issue that's a very, very huge problem for our

         19  communities. People are choosing not to report and

         20  call the police in even life-threatening situations

         21  because of the fear of the victimization. It is very

         22  frequent that the officers in domestic violence

         23  cases do not take police reports, do not make

         24  arrests when orders of protections are violated if

         25  they are in place. It's no discretion. When they see
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          2  two females, they don't think real violence could be

          3  happening, and when they see two males, they think,

          4  well, two men can take care of each other. It's a

          5  problem. It's a problem for the bias victims as

          6  well, when police responde and they see"a faggot"

          7  they're not going to do anything.

          8                 The way we have been dealing with

          9  this is to engage a Community Affairs LGBT Liaison

         10  at the Police Department and on individual levels we

         11  have been doing accompaniments for our clients,

         12  crime victims, to the precinct, making sure that the

         13  reports were taken, they were provided with

         14  appropriate response that was professional and

         15  sensitive. Where only a staff in our Client Services

         16  Department, I believe right now we're seven

         17  counselors, and we have hundreds of cases each

         18  month. So, it's really difficult to get those

         19  services for every client, but we believe that more

         20  training on sensitivity to work with lesbian, gay,

         21  bisexual and transgender communities needs to be

         22  implemented and updated if those curriculas already

         23  exist. We see that there is some opportunity for

         24  improved trainings and improved curricula.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: Do you know if
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          2  there is the curriculum now that they're dealing

          3  with this as it relates to community policing, when

          4  they talked about in the Academy, et cetera?

          5                 MS. CHAPCAKOVA: I actually attended

          6  Citizens Police Academy and what I was told is that

          7  there is currently a curriculum on LGBT sensitivity

          8  curriculum, and something to that sense. I am not

          9  sure. I was not provided a copy of what they

         10  actually teach, so I can't say what the curricula

         11  contains.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 Thank you all very much.

         15                 MS. KHASHU: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: All very

         17  insightful. Appreciate your coming.

         18                 MS. CHAPCAKOVA: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: Mr. Garber.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You've got your

         21  usual three minutes. I know you're used to that.

         22                 MR. GARBER: Good afternoon, Chairs,

         23  members of the Council staff, Sergeant-At-Arms.

         24  First of all, at the outset let me say I need more

         25  than three minutes. I'll speak quickly, but I need
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          2  more than three minutes.

          3                 I'm here today to discuss in

          4  furtherance, ongoing issue of how to improve

          5  community policing or community relations with

          6  police in the City of New York. I, myself, grew up

          7  in Douglas Houses, a New York City Housing Authority

          8  Development, way prior to the merger. At that time,

          9  every police officer who was assigned to Douglas

         10  Houses worked out of what was called the record

         11  room. We had 13 officers. When I was ten and 11, I

         12  must have befriended seven or eight of them. I'll

         13  never forget one day Office Murphy caught me on the

         14  grass. He says, "I'll tell your parents." Okay?

         15  Fine. No problem.

         16                 I also lived in the 24th Precinct.

         17  The 24th Precinct was a model precinct, and most of

         18  the police officers loved the community. My father

         19  being a sexton of a synagogue, on the Jewish

         20  holidays we had police officers assigned outside the

         21  synagogues. So, early on in my life I determined I

         22  wanted to be a member of NYPD. Over the years, I've

         23  seen the Housing Authority Police Department and I

         24  heard Ms. Lozano's testimony, how it went from a

         25  neighborhood police department, a police department
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          2  that loved its residents, to a non-entity. I mean, I

          3  cannot believe that when the merger hearings were

          4  going on, Commissioner Bratton, First Deputy

          5  Commissioner Timoney, Chief Anemone said "Here we

          6  have a Police Department that's loved by minorities.

          7  They must be doing something right." But

          8  unfortunately, when the merger took place in April

          9  1995, things changed. I had to make three civilian

         10  complaints against captains of PSA 3 for uncivility

         11  that I would have never dreamt existed. This is

         12  wrong. The merger issue has to be looked, or

         13  visited, not only for organization entities did it

         14  really merge, but also for as far as civilities and

         15  the issue of community policing. So, that's number

         16  one.

         17                 I was very surprised that when Chief

         18  Zeigler, Chief of the Housing Bureau, and I used to

         19  tell him, why don't you send out a memo to all the

         20  PSAs that December 15th of every year was the

         21  anniversary of the establishment of the Housing

         22  Police, this will bring some espre decor (phonetic),

         23  and he refused to do it, which I can't believe.

         24                 The Housing Authority was established

         25  in 1934. From 1934 until December 14th of 1952 there
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          2  was no direct policing in public housing, but on

          3  December 15th, 1952, the New York City Housing

          4  Authority Police was created.

          5                 Now, I heard this afternoon talk

          6  about the Community Councils and PSA Councils. I

          7  attend both in my role as a plain resident, also as

          8  I'm now the Executive Vice President of Citizens

          9  Police Academy Alumni Association, and for four

         10  years I served as the Brooklyn North Vice President

         11  of that organization, and I have to close to 20

         12  years of various positions on the PSA 3 Council, for

         13  the most part. For the most part, these councils are

         14  not getting results. For instance, for the past four

         15  weeks, I have tried to get a motorcycle that

         16  somebody chained on the grounds of Independence

         17  Towers on the periphery of the sidewalk, which is in

         18  the 90 Precinct. I brought this up to Lieutenant

         19  Colon in Chief Jaffe's Office, Housing Police

         20  Operations, to probationary Captain Pena of the Exec

         21  of the 90. I called the Housing Bureau Wheel, I've

         22  called Inspector Dyckman's Office, and I can't get

         23  results. So, if I can't get results like this,

         24  there's something wrong.

         25                 Now, when I graduated the Citizens
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          2  Police Academy, which by the way, is discussed in

          3  this book. I can't cite you the page number, since

          4  this book is unnumbered. It talks, the Citizens

          5  Police Academy would be a buffer between the Police

          6  Department and the communities.

          7                 Well, in my four years as the

          8  Brooklyn North Vice President, Assistant Chief

          9  Joseph Kaneen, the Commanding Officer of Brooklyn

         10  North, never called me once. Even though there were

         11  volatile situations going on.

         12                 Now, the Precinct Councils and the

         13  PSA Councils have to be publicized, okay? Years ago

         14  they had to be bulletins in storefronts about the

         15  PSA -- excuse me -- about the Precinct Councils, the

         16  PSA Councils, I suggest, that in all public housing

         17  respective buildings you put in a notice, in the

         18  Manager's office, in the Manager's Newsletter, which

         19  comes out twice a year, you could list all the

         20  meeting dates of the PSA Council, as well as the

         21  Housing Authority Journal that comes out 12 months a

         22  year, you can do it either Citywide, it won't take

         23  all that much space, since you're wasting space for

         24  everything else, so I think even though the Councils

         25  exist, I question how they exist, and I also
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          2  question, you do not need yes people (sic) in the

          3  Councils, you need people who are interested in

          4  moving.

          5                 Now, mention was made both by Chief

          6  Zeigler and in both our Senior Council report about

          7  the role of Community Affairs Officers. I have

          8  found, unfortunately, in the 90 Precinct, Police

          9  Officer Vidalle (phonetic), Police Officer Roman

         10  (phonetic), are here to protect the Commanding

         11  Officer. They're not here to really interact with

         12  the people, and I have limited, limited feelings

         13  about Police Office Watson Hauser (phonetic) in PSA

         14  3.

         15                 In addition, some PSAs provide

         16  transportation for the residents, okay? Because

         17  don't forget, they cover an average of 20 to 25

         18  developments, and some PSAs, including PSA 3 does

         19  not. Okay? So that definitely has to be changed.

         20                 I'm very glad that you're planning to

         21  do a separate quorum on NYCHA's role in community

         22  policing. Now, community policing, as was brought up

         23  when Commissioner Brown because Police Commissioner

         24  -- I have the report, but it was too thick to bring

         25  this morning -- he issued a 355-page report on how
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          2  to have community policing and including talking

          3  about raising the force. So, this definitely now, we

          4  have to ensure that at meetings Community Affairs

          5  Officers are dressed properly and professional. Now,

          6  you should not give out any restricted command

          7  parking permits to members of the public, and some

          8  precincts give these out as courtesies, which is

          9  wrong. It's disparate in giving out -- in fact, the

         10  Community Affairs Bureau has given out a plaque,

         11  number one, to Rabbi Glanz (phonetic). Why does he

         12  have a plaque designated for the Community Affairs

         13  Bureau?

         14                 Now, I believe in diversity in

         15  recruitment of the NYPD, but there's a lack of

         16  Jewish cops in the NYPD. And that has to be changed.

         17  You need Jewish cops, just as you need cops in all

         18  ethnic and racial groups.

         19                 I want to correct Chief Zeigler. At

         20  this moment, if you can speak a foreign language in

         21  the NYPD, whether a uniformed member of the service,

         22  or a civilian member of the service, it's recorded

         23  on your annual performance evaluation. So, although

         24  there is no monetary reward, the Department does

         25  know about it. They have a language bank and I used
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          2  to be part of that.

          3                 Now, graffiti. Graffiti is not really

          4  being addressed. I know Chair Vallone is very

          5  concerned. I wish you would come with me to the 90

          6  and show you there is graffiti there. When I bring

          7  it up at the community council meetings, they don't

          8  want to do anything about it. The 90 is not really

          9  taking care of this, okay?

         10                 Now, we definitely have a lot of work

         11  to do. Okay, on page 14 of the City Council report,

         12  I question the role of the Community Affairs Bureau,

         13  because I really feel they're not really doing the

         14  outreach. Even though Chief Zeigler is a person of

         15  color, I feel indirectly he still might want to keep

         16  the status quo. I can go on and on, but this is a

         17  broad issue. I have testified at three of the

         18  forums, all right? And we have to continue, but it's

         19  not simply -- it is not simple. And look at this

         20  audience today. Why weren't there every Community

         21  Council president notified, community board leaders?

         22  This room should have been packed. Okay? I agree

         23  with Councilman Barron. I just want to say this:

         24  Racial profiling, as Commissioner Safir said, when a

         25  person is a victim of a crime, the victim gives the

                                                            179

          1  CIVIL RIGHTS, IMMIGRATION AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  perpetrator's identity. So, if I say that it's XYZ,

          3  then the person is XYZ. And Commissioner Ward had

          4  the guts, Commissioner Ward spoke on something,

          5  black on black crime, which is wrong, okay?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You'll have to

          7  finish up, Mr. Garber.

          8                 MR. GARBER: That's basically what I

          9  want to say. Thank you for listening.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         11                 Any questions?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: Thank you very

         13  much. And I would hope that we will continue to have

         14  the discussion about community policing, because

         15  just as you were a product, I lived in housing, and

         16  I can give you the name of the officers who were

         17  there when I grew up --

         18                 MR. GARBER: Right? Myself.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SEABROOK: And I can tell

         20  you each and every one of them. And I think that the

         21  point that you raised, that when the minority

         22  community can love and appreciate police, it says

         23  something, that the police are doing their job.

         24                 MR. GARBER: In fact, I delivered

         25  eulogies to two Housing Police Officers, both
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          2  African-American passed away, and when I heard they

          3  passed away, I came to the wake and I asked if I

          4  could speak, and the family was in tears when I told

          5  them how one of them befriended me when I was ten

          6  years old, okay? And this we'll never see again, the

          7  way the NYPD is organized now. Thank you.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 1:34 p.m.)
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